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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

Leri A. Weaver I2» PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
CommlfsloBer 603-271-9544 l-TOO-852-3345 E*t. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Kalis $> Fox
IMrector

November 12,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NAMl New Hampshire (VC#166630), Concord, NH to add
funds to support family mutual support and suicide prevention services, by increasing the price
limitation by $50,000 from $2,872,403 to $2,922,403 with no change to the contract completion
date of June 30, 2025, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30,2021, item #18,
amended on June 15, 2022, item #22, and most recently amended on May 17, 2023, Hem #25.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, writh
the authority to adjust budget line items wHhin the pric» limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to add funding so that family mutual support providers can
keep pace with the cost of service provision. Pursuant to House Bill (HB) 2, Section 550 (2023),
funds were made available for this purpose. The Contractor will continue providing statewide
family mutual support, public education and suicide prevention services through support,
education and advocacy for adults and families affected by Serious Mental Illness (SMI), as well
as children and their families affected by Serious Emotional Disturbance (BED).

Approximately 22,000 individuals will be served from July 1,2023 through June 30,2025.

The Contractor will continue to prowde peer-run support groups, education classes,
trainings, and advocacy opportunities for individuals and families affected by mental illness
throughout the state. They will also continue to provide an array of training sessions on best
practices for suicide prevention and post intervention for individuals, family members, service
providers, and the general public. In addition, crisis intervention, suicide intervention, and peer
leadership training sessions will be provided.

The Contractor will continue providing information to the public through web-based media,
and distribute electronic and printed materials, upon approval by the Department, on topics that
include family support and education programs and resources for survivors of a suicide loss.

The Contractor participates on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Council as a
memt^r organization, and will support implementation of the goals of the suicide prevention
council's strategic plan.
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The Department will continue to monitor these services through the review of data reports,
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Department to ensure the Contractor
provides:

• A minimum of eight (8) training sessions each month;

m One-on-one family support programming for a minimum of 125 individuals
annually;

• Web-based support groups to serve a minimum of 120 familles/caregivers
annually;

•  Family, Wends, peer, and caregiver education classes for a minimum of 175
participants annually;

•  Responses to a minimum of 1,000 phone, e-mail, social media messaging, and/or
in-person inquiries annually; and

•  Community presentations to a minimum of 400 family members and the general
public annually on a variety of topics related to promoting awareness of treatment

.  and recovery, suicide prevention and early interventions, and advocacy.

•  In-Reach services to residents at the Glencllff Home through an In-Reach Liaison
who, in collaboration with the in-reach case manager, assists residents with
exploring steps to transitioning back into the community.

• One (1) full time Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator
(Engagement Coordinator) to inform the development of the NH CCBHC model.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will be unable
to provide the Contractor with additional funding to keep pace with the cost of service provision.
This may impact services to individuals with severe mental illness, their families, and parents and
families of children with serious emotional disturbances, which could result in an increase in the
rate of suicides statewide.

Area served: Statewide.

Respectfully submitted.

fr-

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to Join communities and families
in providingopporlimilies for citizens to achieve health ami independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A02

FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

05-95-092-922010-41190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, FAMILY MUTUAL

SUPPORT SERVICES

100% General Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor #166630-6001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $0,00 $522,637.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $25,000.00 $547,637.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $25,000.00 $547,637.00

Sub Total $2,090,548.00 $50,000.00 $2,140,548.00

05-95-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM

SUPPORT

100% General Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor #166630-6001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0,00 $192,465.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 •  $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00

Sub Total $677,396.00 $0.00 $677,395.00

05-95-092-922010-19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, SAMHSA GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor #166630-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class, Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 .  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $104,460.00 $0.00 $104,460.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sub Total $104,460.00 $0.00 $104,460.00

TOTAL $2,872,403.00 §50,000.00 §2,922,403.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Family Mutual Support Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and NAM! New
Hampshire ("the Contractor");

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30, 2021 (Item #18), as amended on June 15, 2022 (item #22), as amended on May 17, 2023
(Item #25), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,922,403

2. Modify Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, SPY 2024 Budget Sheet, in its entirety with Exhibit C-4,
Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, SFY 2025 Budget Sheet, in its entirety with Exhibit C-6,
Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Add Exhibit C-8, Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit C-9, Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

NAMI New Hampshire A-S-1.3 Contractor initials

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMiL-01-A03 Page 1 of 3 Date
V. 7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/29/2023

Date

—DocuSigned by:

iCiCtjA fwi
—  >~..^ED9D00BIMe03142...
Name: Katja B. Fox

Title:
DT rector

11/28/2023

Date

NAMI New Hampshire

^——DocuSigned by:

Title:
Executive Director

NAMI New Hampshire

RFP-2022-DBH.01-FAMIL-01-A03
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFiCE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

"Do^Signed by:

11/29/2023

——Docusigned by:

TZ—: —: J4q704044^l40Q....
Date Name: Rooyn <^Lianno

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NAMI New Hampshire A-S-1.3

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03 Page 3 of 3
y 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-4 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NAMl Nev/ Hampshire
Budget Request for: Family Mutual Support Services

Budget Period 7/1)2023 3/30/2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)26.8%, ,

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $419,234
2. Fringe Benefits ;,T:V, ■ $89,419:
3. Consultants '■ ■■: ■ - $0
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. SO
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $18,580
5.(b) Supplies - Lab ^  .:$0::
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy ;  .::n$0-
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0
5.(e) Supplies Office , $Q: ,

6. Travel ■  $1,640:
7. Software w:
8. (a) Other - Maiiceting/ Communications $6,868
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $2)340:
8. (c) Other - Other {specify below)
Postage $2,500.

Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) .'/i-IT;: ;:. ' , SO.:
Other (please specify) ■V::$0-

9. Subrecipient Contracts
Total Direct Costs $540,581'

Total Indirect Costs $111,516:

TOTAL •  $652,097:

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03

Contractor Initial:

DS

Date:
11/28/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9DF-4679-81EB-B80B15674471

Exhibit C-6 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NAMl New H^rhpshife
Budget Request for::Famify:;MutualiSupport Services

Budget Period 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2025

Indirect Cost Rate {if applicable) ,

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $353,564

2. Fringe Benefits $74,4081
3. Consultants $0;:

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. '  ̂ ' $0
5.(a) Supplies - Educational

5.{b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.{e) Supplies Office

6. Travel KsyEi-Av:::::::;/ y; y- V:::y:-: ::y:-y;:H::y:y:y::;::;$804s
7. Software i:y::yiy:fe;:y;sy::y^:s;v.

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications

8. (b) Other - Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other {specify below)

Other (postage)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) yy&:ty;: :;;:y;./y:^;; ;■
9. Subrecipient Contracts
Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs $94,048i!

TOTAL

RFP-2022-DBH-01 -FAM lL-01 -AOS

ss
Contractor initial:

Date:
11/28/2023
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Exhibit C-8 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NAMI New Hampshire

Budget Request for:

Suicide Prevention Coalition-Fiscal

Agent

Budget Period 7/1/2023i-;^6/30/2024; rfs;::;/::#
Indirect Cost Rate {If applicable)

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $9,671-
2. Fringe Benefits $1,500;:
3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educafional • $0.

5.{b) Supplies - Lab
5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0::
5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office i!;:;::;::;eh

6. Travel

7. Software iRa: - «i:s:: l-K/SQ;;;

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $Ds

8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other - Other {specify below) mmm--.

Outside Services

Other (please specify) -

Other (please specify) ,$0;

Other (please specify)
9. Subrecipient Contacts

Total Direct Costs $108,000;

Total Indirect Costs,

TOTAL $100,000;

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAM1L-01-A03

Contractor Initial:

ss

Date:
11/28/2023
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Exhibit C-9 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NAMI New Harnpshire

Budget Request for:

Suicide Prevention Coalition-Fiscal

Agent

Budget Period 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2025

Indirect Cost Rate {if applicable)0.0%

Line item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages •  $9,571
2. Fringe Benefits ; ■ : Sfisooj;
3. Consuitants

4. Equipment ^
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. a.: /I;;
5.{a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.{b) Supplies-Lab ■■ ■ irKi/.,;
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0:;
5.(d) Supplies- Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel $0-
7. Software a®;: '$G:;
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications :$0;;
8. (b) Other - Education and Training m m Ml
8. (c) Other - Otier {specify below)

Outside Services

Ofiier (please specify)

Ottier (please specify) .

Ofiier (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $100,000

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03

Contractor Initial:

ss

Date:
11/28/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERHFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of Nev,- Hampshire, do hereby certify that NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 24,1982.1 flrrtiier

certify tliat all. fees and documents required by tire Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62349

Certificate Number: 0006349867

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set iny hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 27th day of November A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, ^Todd Donovan_^ ^ ^ , hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected President of _NAMI New Hampshire ^

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duiy called and
held on _November 17, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That _Susan L. Steams, Executive Director ^ (may list more than one person)

is duly authorized on behalf of NAMI New Hampshire to enter Into contracts or agreements
with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any
and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto,
which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repeaied and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire wili rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) iisted above currently occupy the
posltion(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: November 17, 2023 Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Todd Donovan

Title: President

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATEiMMfDonrm)

11/28/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tire policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to Uie terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRCaWCER

E & S Insurance Seroces LLC

21 Meadowbrodt Lane

P 080x7425

Gilford NH 03247-7426

Beanor Spinazzola

K.e«« (603)293-2791 r^Nol (603)293-7188
^^ESS Seanofspinazzo{a@«insiraTce,nel

IHSUReqS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Philadelphia Irrsurance Co
INSURED

National Alliance on Mental Illness, NAMl-NH

85 North State Street

Concord NH 03301

INSURERS Technolr^ Insurance Co ,  42376

INSURER c

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES CF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMEITr WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH PO-ICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

m TYPE INSURANCE
SDDC

INSD

SDBR

wvn POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EPF

(MMIODArYYY) LIMITS

A

X COSaSERCIALCTNERAL UABIUTY

PHPK2547256 054)7/2023 05/07/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE 5 1,000,000

CLAMSMACE X OODR
UAMABh 10 KfcN 1 fcU

PREMISES (Ea oceuirence) s 100,000

MEDEXP (Any era person) S 5,000

PERSCTWL&ADV NJURY S 1,000,000

GEIfl. AGGREGATE LBHITAWL ES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE 5 3,000,000

poucy] 15^ i |ioc
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - (xmpiopmo
5 3,000,000

AbMol Cnslr, CIssSpc $ 1,000,000

AUTGtSOBILE UABItllY COMBINED SIN(a£ UMIT
(Eaacditent) $

ANY AUTO

HEDUUED
FTOS
^WNED
rrOSONLY

BODILY NJURY (Pa-pason) $

owmy
AUTOS ONLY

sc
Al

BODILY NJURY (Pa aoSdert) $

HIRED
AUTOS

NC
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(PeraccWent) $

s

A

X UMBREULAUAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CU MS-MADE PHUB861285 054)7/2023 05/07/2024

EACH OCXXJRRENCE 5 1,000,000

AGGREGATE $

DED X RETENTmS 'iO.OWl s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AMD ESSPLOYERS* UABIUTY y 1N
ANYPRCFRETORffWrNERIEXECUnVE .f
OFHCER/MafflEREXaUDED? "
(Mandatory In NH) .
ifVPS. desaibe imdar
DESCRIPTION OF OWiRADONS below

N/A TES4314240 10/10/2023 10/10/2024

vy PER OTH-
^ STATUTE ER

EL. EACH ACC DENT 5 5(M,000

E L. DISEASE - EA ENEIOYEE 5 600,000

E L. DISEASE - PCXICYLMIT 5 600,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIOrS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddiUoirol Remarks ScheOule, may be aHacheU K mote space Is tBdUlretJ)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH, D^artment of Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCFUBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WIU BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord NH 03301

L...

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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National Alllanco on Mental Illness

nflllll New Hampshire
ance on Mental {llnesfi

MISSION

NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots organization working to improve the lives of ail people

affected by mental illness and suicide through support, education and advocacy.

VISION

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and

are able to:

Access the supports and evidence-based treatment necessary for recovery;

•  Have a lifespan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and

•  Reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discrimination.

GUIDING VALUES

Compassion. We offer compassion and empathy to ail who are affected by mental illness and

suicide.

Dignity. We believe everyone deserves to be free from judgment, and strive to foster hope

always.

Inclusiveness. We respect people, value the voice of individuals with lived experience, and are

committed to equality and diversity.

Collaboration. We are committed to a culture of teamwork and collaboration with diverse

partners, working toward shared goals.

Integrity. We believe in openness and transparency, stewarding our resources, and being

accountable to the individuals and families we serve, our members, and our funders.

Find Help, Find Hope. .
NAMI New Hampshire @ 85 North State Street ® Concord, NH 03301

InfoLlne: 800-242-6264 a Tel. 603-225-5359 ® Fax 603-228-8848 ® info@naminh.org /www.NAMINH.org
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

Financial Statements

With Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

June 30, 2022 and 2021

and

Independent Auditor's Report

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit

of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

With Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 and 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS
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Report on Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other

Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With

Government Auditing Standards 17-18

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal

Control Over Complianee Required by the Uniform Guidance 19-21

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 22-23
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, ^Vachon Clukay
& Company PC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

NAMI New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NAMI New Hampshire (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of NAMI New Hampshire as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of NAMI New Harnpshire and to meet pur other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffieient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Managementfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of fmaneial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NAMI New
Hampshire's ability to . continue as a going concern within one year, after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes bur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and



DocuSign Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9DF-4679-81EB-B80B15674471

therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in aecordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from, fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, hut not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about NAMI New Hampshire's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemanee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-.
related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the financial statements. Sueh information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the finaneial statements.
The information has heen suhjeeted to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying aecounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 16, 2022, on our consideration of NAMI New Hampshire's intemal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe the seope of our testing of intemal control over
finaneial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering NAMI New Hampshire's intemal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 16, 2022
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS

2022 2021

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable, net

Grants receivable

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Land

Building and improvements

Equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Less accumulated depreciation

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Investments

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

551,943

881,555

268.685

572.686

2,274,869

290,800

1,177,690

8,218

604

1,477,312

(222,015)

1,255,297

821,634

821,634

526,623

687,193

355,275

319,882

1,888,973

290,800

1,177,690

8,218

604

1,477,312

(195,490)

1,281,822

848,351

848,351

4,351,800 $ 4,019,146

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Refundable grant

Current portion of mortgage notes payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Mortgage notes payable, less current portion
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$  213,569

273,190

152,083

16,137

654,979

317,905

317,905

972,884

116,644

140,200

11,853

268,697

406,606

406,606

675,303

NET'ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board designated

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2,557,282

,  821,634

3,378,916

4,351,800

2,451,970

848,351

43,522

3,343,843

4,019,146

See notes to financial statements

I
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUE AND SUPPORT:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies $ 2,516,451 $ 2,588,944

Contributions 663,216 640,142

Interest and dividends 283 11,694

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments (94,158) 173,424

Fundraising events 200,565 180,723

Training services 1,439,974 1,193,860

Membership dues 3,968 6,556

Other revenue 92,654 5,998

SBA Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness 454,800

Net assets released from donor restrictions 43,522

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 4,866,475 5,256,141

EXPENSES:

PROGRAM SERVICES:

Community and Public Policy Relations 218,090 217,910

Connect Suicide Prevention Project 863,686 802,007

Public Education 2,679,246 2,345,448

TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES 3,761,022 3,365,365

SUPPORTING SERVICES:

Management and General 683,297 426,563

Fundraising 343,561 231,053

TOTAL SUPPORTING SERVICES 1,026,858 657,616

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,787,880 4,022,981

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 78,595 1,233,160

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Training services 43,522.

Net assets released from donor restrictions (43,522)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (43,522) 43,522

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 35,073

.  \

1,276,682

NET ASSETS - JULY 1 3,343,843 2,067,161

NET ASSETS - JUNE 30 $ 3,378,916 $  3,343,843

See notes to financial statements

2
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30,2022

Program Services Supporting Services

Community Connect

and Public Suicide Total Management Total

Policy Prevention Public Program and Supporting Total

Relations Proiect Education Services General Fundraisine Services Expenses

ALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries. $  161,790 $  310,117 $  1,859,793 $ 2,331,700 $  427,114 $  155,695 $  582,809 $ 2,914,509
Employee benefits 21,940 53,485 287,303 362,728 28,552 19,775 48,327 411,055
Payroll taxes 11,469 22,607 139,717 173,793 44,601 10,051 54,652 228,445

195,199 386,209 2,286,813 2,868,221 500,267 185,521 685,788 3,554,009

)THER EXPENSES:

Accounting 508 2,158 6,729 9,395 2,412 889 3,301 12,696
Audit fees 800 3,400 10,600 14,800 3,800 1,400 5,200 20,000
Legal and membership fees 1,964 1,715 3,679 6,156 6,156 9,835
Contracted services 696 390,990 57,378 449,064 41,970 48,260 90,230 539,294
Client services/training 3,774 13,023 88,394 105,191 5,458 5,741 11,199 116,390
Software subscriptions 322 1,248 28,676 30,246 14,155 10,444 24,599 54,845
Staff conferences and conventions 340 1,691 3,004 5,035 12,669 2,628 15,297 20,332
Occupancy 1,289 5,479 17,082 23,850 6,210 2,256 8,466 . 32,316
Office supplies 4,221 11,681 32,390 48,292 15,821 7,493 23,314 71,606
Maintenance 5,244 22,286 69,483 97,013 24,908 9,177 34,085 131,098
Fundraising/Event supplies

- 27,826 27,826 27,826
Depreciation 1,296 5,511 11,291 18,098 6,158 2,269 .  8,427 26,525
Food supplies 86 1,610 1,696 5,458 20,673 26,131 27,827
Equipment rental 562 2,389 7,449 10,400 2,670 984 3,654 14,054
Equipment maintenance 4,712 4,712 8,458 338 8,796 13,508
Advertising 275 275 66 66 341

Printing 275 1,277 3,650 5,202 202 7,613 7,815 13,017
'Telephone and communications 2,819 5,187 27,659 35,665 22,115 1,657 23,772 59,437
Postage'and shipping 51 223 3,187 3,461 1,114 5,392 6,506 9,967
Staff transportation 8 5,149 11,865 17,022 285 1,415 1,700 18,722
Insurance 520 2,211 .  6,894 9,625 2,472 911 3,383 13,008
Other expenditures 80 80 539 608 1,147 1,227

Total $  218,090 $  863,686 $ 2,679,246 $  3,761,022 $  683,297 $  343,561 $ 1,026,858 $ 4,787,880

See notes to financial statements

3
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Services Supporting Services
Community Cormect

and Public Suicide Total Management Total

Policy Prevention Public Program and Supporting Total

Relations Proiect Education Services General Fundraisina Services Expenses
SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries $  172,802 $  263,250 $  1,645,431 $ 2,081,483 $  257,701 $  134,070 $  391,771 ■ $ 2,473,254
Employee benefits 12,023 41,984 283,828 337,835 16,333 30,147 46,480 384,315
Payroll taxes 13,856 20,670 135,881 170,407 15,902 9,671 25,573 195,980

198,681 325,904 2,065,140 2,589,725 289,936 173,888 463,824 3,053,549

OTHER EXPENSES:

Accounting 349 1,504 2,918 4,771 72 2,321 2,393 7,164
Audit fees 448 5,722 5,722 11,892 .  460 448 908 12,800
Legal and membership fees 4,968 2,589 2,868 , 10,425 9,495 1,305 10,800 21,225
Contracted sei^vices 500 422,445 61,764 484,709 43,195 1,511 . 44,706 529,415
Client services/training 2,013 14,512 66,891 83,416 835 3,933 4,768 88,184
Software subscriptions 733 1,825 4,419 6,977 19,991 10,595 30,586 37,563
Staff conferences and conventions 313 333 455 1,101 1,315 200 1,515 2,616
Occupancy 1,600 6,723 21,766 30,089 320 1,600 1,920 32,009
Office supplies 739 95 5,248 6,082 30,091 1,361 31,452 37,534
Maintenance 854 3,588 11,617 16,059 171 854 1,025 17,084
Fundraising/Event supplies 8,045 8,045 15,046 15,046 23,091
Depreciation 1,621 6,807 22,040 30,468 324 1,621 1,945 32,413
Food supplies 29 20 49) 522 373 895 944

Equipment rental 823 3,458 11,198 15,479 1,344 1,344 16,823
Equipment maintenance 75 564 2,678 3,317 2,762 74 2,836 6,153
Advertising 254 254 1,050 1,050 1,304
Printing 2,677 2,677 355 355 3,032
Telephone and communications 3,522 3,272 29,014 35,808 19,165 2,699 21,864 57,672
Postage and shipping 34 52 2,475 2,561 857 5,436 6,293 8,854
Staff transportation . 180 3,780 3,960 174 174 4,134.
Insurance 608 2,434 8,275 11,317 243 608 851 12,168
Other expenditures ■) 6,184 6,184 5,465 5,601 11,066 17,250

Total $  217,910 $, 802,007 $ 2,345,448 S  3,365,365 $  426,563 $  231,053 $  657,616 $ 4,022,981

See notes toflnancial statements
4
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from grants, contributions, and contracts

Interest income received

Cash paid to employees
Cash pa:id to suppliers and others
Interest paid

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

2022

4,902,621

•  283

(2,812,084)

(1,703,026)
(16,254)

371,540

2021

$ 4,474,034 '
11,694

(2,629,683)

(1,476,291)
(18,621)

361,133

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of investments ~

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities

(261,803)

(261,803)

(191,185)

(191,185)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Payments on mortgage notes payable

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

(84,417)

(84,417)

(103,107)

(103,107)

Net Increase in Cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, ending of year

25,320

526,623

66,841

459,782

$  551,943 $ 526,623

Sujjplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Transactions:

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments
SBA Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness

(94,158) $ 173,424
-  454,800

628,224(94,158)

See notes to financial statements

5
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness) was founded as a nonprofit corporation in
1982 and is committed to improving the lives of all people affected by mental illness and suicide through
support, education and advocacy. As a grassroots coalition of people living with mental illness and their
families, NAMI NH has over 40 years of service to Granite State children, transition age youth, adults,
and seniors, offering statewide activities which provide education/training and support to individuals,
families and communities. The organization also promotes and provides advocacy and empowerment at
the individual/family level as well as at the systems level by offering members, volunteers, and
stakeholders training and graduated opportunities to build confidence in advocacy and leadership skills.
Last year, NAMI NH provided support, education and advocacy to over 15,000 individuals. The financial
support for these programs and activities comes from a variety of sources that include governmental and
private foundation grants, contract services, donations, and membership dues.

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and are able to:
•  Access the supports and evidence-based treatment necessary for recovery;
•  Have a lifespan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and
•  Reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discrimination.

In support of our mission, NAMI NH is dedicated to providing support, education and advocacy equitably
without discrimination against, or harassment, of, any person on the basis of race, color, national origin,
language, religion, sex, age, disability, citizenship, marital status, creed, sexual orientation, gender
expression or gender identity (individuals' preferred gender will be respected, and individuals will be
referred to by their name and pronoun of choice, whenever feasible) or any other characteristic protected
by federal or state law. Any such discrimination or harassment is prohibited and will not be tolerated.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of NAMI New Hampshire conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit entities except as indicated hereafter. The
following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
j

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue, is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Donated Services, Materials and Facilities

NAMI New Hampshire receives significant volunteer time and efforts. The value of these volunteer
efforts, while critical to the success of its mission, are not reflected in the financial statements because the
accounting criteria for recognition of such volunteer efforts have not been satisfied.

Donated goods and professional services are recorded as both revenues and expenses at their estimated
fair value. The Entity received donated supplies and professional services in support of fundraising
activities totaling -$0- during each of the years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Salaries, employee benefits, payroll taxes, accounting, audit
fees, legal fees, occupancy, maintenance, depreciation, equipment rental, equipment maintenance,
telephone, and insurance are distributed based on a cost allocation process. Expenses are initially charged
to each program or supporting function based on time and effort. Expenses associated with management
and general are then allocated among the program and supporting services based on one of two criteria.
The first criteria used is to allocate indirect costs based on the indirect cost rate established by the grantor.
If there is no indirect rate specified, the overhead rate as it appears on the IRS form 990 of the preceding
year will be used.
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and equivalents consists of demand deposits, cash
on hand and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less.

Investments

Investments, which consist principally of money market accounts, mutual funds, and exchange traded
funds, are carried at their market value at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021. Investments reported as
non-current represent amounts designated by the Board as held for an operating reserve. Unrealized gains
and losses on investments are reflected in the statements of activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements with a cost in excess of $1,000 and to charge to operations currently for expenditures
which do not extend the lives of related assets in the period incurred. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Years

Building and improvements 39

Equipment 5

Fumiture and fixtures 7-10

Depreciation expense was $26,525 and $32,413 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Compensated Absences

Full-time and part-time employees are entitled to paid vacation based on their length of employment.
Employees are allowed to carry forward a maximum of 10 vacation days. Upon termination of
employment, full-time employees will receive up to five days of accrued/unused vacation pay. Accrued
vacation pay amounted to $47,248 and $42,111 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. An allowance for uncollected
receivables of $4,000 has been recorded as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Intemal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of June 30, 2022 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried in the financial statements
at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of the transactions. The
fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain accounts may differ
significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and other miscellaneous income when cash is received or
based on donor restrictions as described previously. Interest income is recognized monthly as aecrued.
The Entity recognizes revenue from contracts with customers in the form of training and consultation
services provided to organizations and individuals. Revenue for training and consultation services are
recognized at a point in time as services are rendered. Amounts recognized are based on amounts
invoiced. Payment is due on presentation of invoice.

The Entity also has revenue derived from governmental contracts for counseling services provided to
individuals. Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized when the Entity has met the performanee
requirements specified by contract provisions. For governmental contraets, serviees are invoiced on a
monthly basis in arrears, however, a receivable may be recorded in advance of amounts invoiced if all
other performance requirements have been satisfied. Payment is due on presentation of invoice.

NOTE 2—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested with the
objective to provide a mix of income and growth, but overall to protect the organization's accumulated
wealth. Investments ean be made in the following securities: certifieates of deposit, money market mutual
funds, exchange traded funds, and corporate bonds. Sources of liquidity include cash, investments, and
accounts receivable.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Entity considers all expenditures related to its ongoing programs and activities as well as the conduct of
services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

position date because of donor and other restrictions or internal board designations. Amounts not
available include the internal board designated funds. In the event the need arises to utilize the board
designated funds for liquidity purposes, the funds could be dravvn upon by a vote of the Finance
Committee.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the financial position date, comprise the following:

2022 2021

Cash $  551,943 $  526,623

Investments 1,703,189 1,535,544

Accounts receivable, net 268,685 355,275

Grants receivable 572,686 319,882

Total Financial Assets 3,096,503 2,737,324

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions (43,522)
Board designated fimds (821,634) (848,351)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 2,274,869 S  1,845,451

NOTE 3—SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at local financial institutions located in New Hampshire. The Entity's
cash deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a total of $250,000
at each financial institution. Deposits with financial institutions in excess of FDIC insurarice limits totaled
$236,161 as of June 30, 2022. The Entity has not experienced any losses on such accounts.

NOTE 4—INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical, assets or
liabilities in active markets at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs, to the valuation include:

a  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
9  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

10



DocuSign Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9DF-4679-81EB-B80B15674471

NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

If'the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair va,lue
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair, value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Money market funds, mutual funds, exchange traded funds, and equities: Valued at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Certificates ofdeposit and corporate debt securities: Valued using a market approach valuation technique
which incorporates third-party pricing services and other relevant observable information such as market
interest rates, yield curves, prepayment risk and credit risk generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities in valuing these types of investments.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets measured at fair
value as of June 30, 2022 and 2021:

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30,2022 '
Level 1 Level 2 Total

Money market mutual funds $ 917,637 $ 917,637
Mutual funds 368,677 368,677
Exchange traded funds 370,173 . 370,173
Certificates of deposit $ 41,694 41,694
Corporate debt securities 5,008 5,008
Total assets at fair value $ 1,656,487 $ 46,702 $ 1,703,189
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Money market mutual funds $ 726,765 $ 726,765
Mutual funds 363,834 363,834

Exchange traded funds 428,031 428,031
Certificates of deposit $ 6,517 6,517

Corporate debt seeurities 10,397 10,397

Total assets at fair value $ 1,518,630 $^^^6^924 $^^^^535^5^

NOTE 5—SBA NOTE PAYABLE

During April 2020, the Organization obtained a note payable under the Paycheck Protection Program in
the amount of $454,800. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization applied for and received
principal forgiveness in whole by the Small Business Administration under the CARES Act. The debt
forgiveness has been recognized as revenue and support on the statement of activities for the year ended
June 30, 2021.

NOTE 6—MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the mortgage notes payable consist of the following:

2022 2021

$348,000 mortgage note payable, secured.by property, payable
in monthly installments of $2,364 including interest through March 2028.
Interest is fixed at 5.35% through March 2028, with interest thereafter
based on the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Advance rate plus 3%. $ 236,042 $ 313,459

$ 140,000 mortgage note payable to the City of Concord, New
Hampshire is non-interest bearing and is secured by the property.
The Entity is a subrecipient of Community Development Block
Grant fimds which were used to create an ADA compliant
community education space. Repayment of the funds will be
required in the event of noncompliance with the grant. The note
will be forgiven over a period of 20 years through December 31,2034. 98,000 105,000

$ 334,042 $ 418,459

Under the terms of the mortgage note payable for the property located at 87 North State Street, Concord
New Hampshire, with a balance outstanding as of June 30, 2022 of $236,042, the Entity must maintain a
loan to value ratio of less than 80%. Additionally, the Entity must demonstrate a debt service coverage
ratio of at least 1.00. As of June 30, 2022, the Entity was in compliance with the debt requirements.
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

Following are the maturities of the mortgage notes payable as of June 30, 2022;

Year Ending
June 30. Amount

2023 $ 16,137
2024 17,022

2025 17,955

2026 18,940

2027 19,978

Thereafter 146,010

$  236,042

NOTE 7—NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following purpose restricted funding at June 30, 2022 and
2021:

2022 20^

Nashua IDN3 $ ^ $ 43,522

NOTE 8—BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

Board designated net'assets consist of the following at June 30,2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Contingency fund $ 671,634 $ 698,351
Fixed Asset fund 100,000 100,000
Special Opportunity fund 50,000 50,000

'  $ 821,634 $ 848,351

NOTE 9—REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
\.

The following tables provide information about balances of receivables, contract assets, and contract
liabilities associated with contracts with customers for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021:

Contract Contract

Receivables Assets Liabilities

June 30,2022 $ 268,685 $ - $ -

June 30,2021 $ 355,275 $ - $

July 1,2020 $ 373,059 $ - $ -

NOTE 10—CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE RISK

The Entity's primary source of revenues is fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
directly from the federal government. During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Entity
recognized revenue of $2,516,452 (52%) aiid $2,588,944 (49%), respectively, from fees and grants from
governmental, agencies. Revenue is recognized as eamed under the terms of the grant agreements and is
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAE STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates from training services, contributions, in-
kind donations, and other income.

NOTE 11—RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a deferred compensation retirement plan under Section 403(b) of tbe Internal Revenue
Code. Under the terms of the plan, employee contributions are made through a salary reduction plan.
During the years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Entity's contribution to the plan was equal to up to
2.0% of each eligible employee's annual salary. The Entity contributed $51,064 and $24,679 for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 12—CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, of additional
expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at this time, although the
Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 13—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 16, 2022 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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SCHEDULE I

NAMI New Hampshire

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through

Grantor / Program or Cluster Title

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance

Pass Through Payments from the City of Manchester, New Hampshire
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance

Assistance

Listing

Number

93.243

93.243

93.243

Pass-Through

Entity

Identifying

Number

N/A

#1H79SM082210-01

#lH79SM082210-02

Expenditures

$  796,784

35,343

134,500

169,843

See notes to schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards

.  15

966,627

Pass Through Payments from the New Hampshire Department of Corrections
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services

Pass Through Payments from the University of New Hampshire
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services

93.958

93.958

#49053316

#PZL0190

35,400

142,088

Total Department of Health and Human Services

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

177,488

1,144,115

$  1,144,115



DocuSign Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9DF-4679-81EB-B80B15674471

NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1—BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
award activity of NAMI New Hampshire under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements; Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of NAMI New Hampshire, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of NAMI New Hampshire.

NOTE 2— SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is .presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to NAMI New Hampshire's financial statements. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
eertain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3—INDIRECT COST RATE

NAMI New Hampshire has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4—RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recognition of expenditures of federal awards has been reported in the NAMI New Hampshire's
financial statements as program services and management and general expenses, as applicable.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

NAMI New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and. the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NAMI New Hampshire
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated Deceniber 16, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NAMI New
Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMI New
Hampshire's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMI
New Hampshire's intemal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a' reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might he material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to he material weaknesses. However, material wealoiesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NAMI New Hampshire's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its eompliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direet and
material effeet on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on complianee with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
VlXiAqv Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 16, 2022
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

NAMI New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited NAMI New Hampshire's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of NAMI New Hampshire's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2022. NAMI
New Hampshire's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, NAMI New Hampshire complied, in all rnaterial respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report. -

We are required to be independent of NAMI New Hampshire and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of NAMI
New Hampshire's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities ofManagement for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable
to NAMI New Hampshire's federal programs.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on NAMI New Hampshire's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if. there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about NAMI New Hampshire's compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding NAMI New Hampshire's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of NAMI New Hampshire's internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire's intemal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any signifieant deficiencies and material weaknesses
in intemal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over complianee, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with govemance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknessesj
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 16, 2022
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NAMI New Hampshire
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30,2022

Section I~Snmmary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in aeeordanee with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant defieiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

X  no

X  none reported

X  no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficieney(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findihgs disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

yes X no
yes X none reported

Unmodified

yes X no

Identification of major federal program(s):

Assistance Listing Nnmber(s)

93.243

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of
Regional and National Significance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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Section II—Flnancial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section III—Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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Atkinson Rev. Kate NH
_

Breault Bill NH
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_
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_
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Moler Teresa NH
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NAMI New Hampshire Family Mutual Suppoit Services

Bernadett® P. Seifert

Licensing/Cerfifications:
•  Licensed Clinical Social Worker, State of New Hampshire, #228, (1988 to present)
•  Academy of Certified Social Workers, (fSS/fopresenfj

Education:

•  Master of Social Work, 1984, Boston University, Boston, MA (Concentration: Casework,
Sub-concentration: Aging)

•  BA, Social Welfare, 1980, University of Southern Maine, Portland, ME

Professional Experience:

Deputy Director, March 2022 to present, NAMi NH, NAMI NH, Concord, NH
• Responsible for program development and implementation, including evaluation and

quality improvement
• Directed organizational efforts in the state's seven Integrated Delivciy Networks
•  Interfaces witli criminal justice partners

Director of Adult Programs, 2017 to 2022, a/tof Coordinator of Older Adult Programs, 2008
to 2017, NAMI NH, NAMI NH, Concord, NH
•  Oversee programs that provide support, education and advocacy for individuals and

their families who are affected by mental health issues.
•  Develop and implement the NAMI NH Side by Side for Independent Living Program

Geriatric Mental Health Training Coordinator, February 2008 to present, Northern New
England Geriatric Education Center at Dartmouth Medical School, Lebanon, NH
•  Plan and develop educational programs throughout New Hampshire and eastern

Vermont through the NNE Geriatric Education Center
•  Lead support groups for family caregivers of individuals with Alzheimer's and other

related dementias.

•  Participate in a Geriatric Workforce Enhancement Program team (2015 to present) that
provides support and education on geriatric best practices to primary care teams in New
Hampshire, Vermont and Maine. (HRSA funded program)

Lead Community Liaison - Seniors Count, 2003 to 2008, Easter Seals NH- Senior Services,
Manchester, NH
•  Provided outreach and clinical case management to older adults In Manchester

community
•  Assisted in development and management of Seniors Count Community Collaboration,

project.
•  Supervised Seniors Count Social Service team

Consultant - Older Adult Services, 2000 to 2003, NH Division of Behavioral Health, Concord,
NH . .

•  Provided ongoing consultation and support in various initiatives regarding older adult
mental health services pn a statewide basis
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NAMI New Hampshire Family Mutual Support Services

Director of Bedford Counseling Services, 1995 to 2000
Director of Senior Services, 1985 to 2000, Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester,
Manchester, NH.

«  Managed outpatient psychiatric service program for older adults through 2000, and brief
treatment of outpatient adults of all ages

■  Provided direct clinical services, including assessment, treatment planning, and
individual and group psychotherapy

■  Provided clinical and administrative supervision to clinical staff and Masters level interns

■  In addition to managing Senior Services Program, also managed 2 other clinical
programs within the agency from 1995 to 2000 (Bedford Counseling Associates and
Medication Services)

Social Work Consultant, 1984 to 1985, New Hampshire Hospital, Concord, NH
■  Provided assessment, treatment and discharge planning on a psychiatric hospital

continuing care unit
■  Supervised 2 Mental Health Workers

Social Services Coordinator, 1982 to 1984, Patricia White Elderly Housing, Brighton, MA
■  Provided information & referral, advocacy, crisis intervention and counseling in 250 unit

public elder housing development
•  Assisted in the grant writing for annual funding for the program

Social Worker / Activities Director, 1980 to 1982, Tare Nursing Home, Dorchester, MA
■  Provided counseling and patient advocacy for residents
■  Presented social service educational programs for staff
■  Planned and implemented recreational and educational activities in nursing home

Internship Experiences:
•  Geriatric Social Work Intern, September 1983 to May 1984 St. Elizabeth's Hospital,

Brighton, MA
-  Social Work Intern, (Advanced Field Placement) June to Dec. 1979, High Street Resource

Center, Portland, ME
■  Elder Advocate, September 1978 to June 1979, So. Maine Senior Citizens Counoii,

Portland, ME

instructor Experience:
Presentations on topics related to mental health to various groups throughout New Hampshire -
2008 to present
•  Presentations to family members and caregivers; Side by Side for Independent Living (a 6-

sesslon series offered through NAMi NH)
•  Presentations to various professional groups. Topics include: Depression and Older Adults;

Substance Abuse and Misuse in Older Adults; Understanding Dementia; Hoarding
Behaviors in Older Adults; Suicide Risks in Older Adults; Oaregiver Issues; Elder Abuse;
Mental Health Issues in Older Adults, etc.)

•  Trainer for NH Police Standards Council on mental health topics, as well as for the Connect
Suicide Prevention Program and CALM (Counseling on Access to Lethal Means)

55
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NAMI New Hampshire Family Mutual Support Seivices

Oommittees/Cc^alitioiiss

•  National Association of Social Workers (NASW)-Board Member (2019 to 2022)
•  National Association of Social Workers - NH Chapter, (1986 to present)

0 NASW-NH Board Member (2007 to 2019) (Past-President 2017-2019)
o NASW-NH Board President (2015 to 2017)
o  "Social'Workerofthe Year" Award-1996-NASW-NH Chapter.

•  NH Coalition on Substance Abuse, Mental Health and Aging (1999 to present; Chairperson
2010 to present)

•  NH Coalition on Caring, (2010 to present)
•  NH Elderly and Vulnerable Adult Fatality Review Committee - NH Attorney General's Office,

(2011 to present)
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Elaine deMello

EDUCATION:

University of Connecticut, Concord, NH; MSW (1985)
Lehman College, Bronx, W: MS in Therapeutic Recreation (1980)
Ramapo College, Mahwah, NJ: BS in Psychology

CIRTIFICATIONS/LICENSES: ■

LCSW, State of NH
Guidance Counselor, State of NH
School Social Worker, State of NH

EXPERIENCE:

1999 - Present National Alliance on Mental Illness NH, Concord, NH
Supervisor of Training and Prevention Services
- Develop and implement community protocols and training for suicide prevention, intervention and

postvention leading to recognition as a National Best Practice program.
- Provide consultation and training on a national basis on suicide.prevention and postvention
- Co-chair of Youth Suicide Prevention Assembly (statewide coalition in NH): review cases of

suicide deaths, recommend practices and resources to statewide and regional partners, coordinate
annual suicide prevention conference

- Develop and implement support and educational services for children and adults provided througji
NAMINH ^

- Coordinate & present statewide educational programs on mental illness and suicide prevention for
schools, colleges, businesses, law enforcement personnel, health services providers, and the
general public.

- Develop and lead courses for specialized provider organizations including Division of Otildren,
Youth and Families (DCYF), PSTC (Police Standards and Training Council) and NH National
Guard.

- Develop, review, and disseminate educational material about mental health and mental illness for
target audiences around the state,

- Develop, revise and implement family education programs about mental illness,
- Maintain contact with professionals, affdiates and consumer- groups to provide consultation,

technical support, educational material and resources.

2004 - Present Plyraoutli State University, Plymouth, NH
Adjunct Faculty, Health Education & Social Work
- Teach Mental Health com-ses to Health Education and Social Work majors

2001 - Present Genesis Behavioral Healtli, Laconia, NH and Riverbend
Community Mental Health Center, Concord, NH

Child Impact Teacher
- Conduct Child Impact classes required by court for parents involved in divorce or custody cases.

2002 - Present Genesis Behavioral Health, Laconia, NH
Emergency Services Clinician & QI Consultant
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- Provide clinical emergency service response to residents of Belknap and Soutliem Graftbn
Coxmties

- Seive on statewide behavioral health disaster response team
- Conduct complaint investigations and assist with audits and quality improvement process^ such

as development of policies and procedures

1999-2001 Division of Behavioral Health, Concord, NH
Consultant

- Serve as consultant to conduct audits on clinical records in mental health centers around New
Hampshire.

1992-2000 Jemrie D. Blake Elementary School, Hill, NH
Guidance Counselor (9/92-6/00)

1981 -1999 Genesis the Counseling Group, Laconia, NH

1981 -1999 Quality Improvement Director (9/96-7/99)
Community Support Program Director (9/86-2/97)
Vocational Services Coordinator (6/83-9/86)
Clinician/Therapist (9/81 -6/83)

1978 -1981 Rockland Psychiatric Center, Orangebmg, NY
Assistant Director, Mount Vernon Workshop (8/79-8/81)
Therapy/Recreation Assistant (8/78-8/79)

Professional Memberships;
- National Alliance on Mentallllness (1988-Present)

Awards:

- New Hampshire Rehabilitation Association: Practitionerofthe Year (1985)
- New Hampshire Alliance for the Mentally 111: Administrator of the Year (1993)
- New Hampshire Alliance for the Mentally 111; Professional of the Year (1998)

Trainer for;

- NH Police Standards Council: Mental Health Crisis Response, Suicide Prevention and Postvention
- Goffliect Suicide Prevention and Postvention, all disciplines
- AMSR: Assessing and Managing Suicide Risk (AMSR) for clinical and college settings
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Susan L. Steams

QUALIFICATIONS

■  Lived experience as a family member and advocate
■  Strong management and leadership skills In non-profit organizations
■  Proven ability to build, foster, and lead teams during challenging times
■  Experienced working with boards of directors, grassroots volunteers, and policymakers
■  Expertise in program development, implementation, and evaluation
■  Experienced working with diverse individuals and communities
" Understandingoftheintersectionofmentalillness, disability, inequality, abuse, justice

system involvement, and family issues

WORK EXPERIENCE

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness), Concord, New Hampshire
Executive Director, 2022 - Present
Principal administrator of NAMI NH responsible for advancing the vision and mission of NAMI
NH as set by the Board of Directors, Provides overall leadership to assist and support tlie staff
members and volunteei-s in discharging the highest quality work in support of Granite Staters
affected by mental illness and suicide.

Deputy Director, 2016 — 2022; Director of Philanthropy, 2013-2016
Responsible for program development and implementation, including evaluation and qualify
improvement, directs organizational efforts in the state's seven Integrated Deliyeiy Networks,
interfaces with criminal justice partners, oversees fund development and grant writing.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, New Hampshire
Director of Development, 2007-2013
Developed strategies to diversify revenue and sustain programs; responsible for grant writing and
management; provided operational management of collaborative projects including supportive
housing, mental healtli court, and primaiy and behavioral health care integration.

Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, New Hampshire
Director of Proposal Development, 2005-2007
Responsible for project design, proposal development and writing, as well as building
partnerships with community providers and stakeholders.

Guardian ad Litem Board, Concord, New Hampshire
Trainer, contracted, 2004-2010

Trained Guardians ad Litem on Mental Illness & Recovery; Effective Sti'ategies for Working
with Parents witli Mental Illness; and Domestic Violence.

Disabilities Rights Center, Concord, New Hampshire
Director, Coalition for Family Law &. Mental Health Project, 2001-2006
Oversaw coalition-building and project management to promote legal equity for parents with
mental illness, ensure adequate assessment of parenting competency, and improve outcomes.
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Whole Village Family Resource Center, Plymouth, New Hampshire
Executive Director, 1998-2001

Oversaw collaborative project for supporting families with multiple risk factors for negative
outcomes, including fund development and evaluation efforts.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
^ Program Specialist, 1993-1998

Responsible for providing training on domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking to various
audiences, including law enforcement, EMS, child protective services, and other providers;
oversaw evaluation efforts for fourteen certified crisis centers across the state.

Task Force Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Plymouth, NH
Administrative Director, 1988-1993

Oversaw agency operations, including finance, human resources, and grant/project management.

PROPESSIONAL ACTIVITIES

Childrenhs Behavioral Health Resource Center Leadership Team, Member & NAMI NH
Principal hwestigator, 2021-present

Mental Health Teclmology Transfer Center - New England Advisory Team
(HHS Region 1 — SAMHSA), Member, 2019 - present

Governor's Commission on Disability, Member, 2016 - present
Appointed hy Governor Margaret Hassan

Lakes Region Mental Health, Board Member & Past President, 2007 - present

EDUCATION

University of Massachusetts, Amherst, School of Education. Graduate Studies in Consulting
& Counseling Psychology, 1986 -1987,

University of Massachusetts, Amherst. B. A. in English, 1986.

SELECTED PUBLICATIONS & PRESENTATiON.S

2020 Perspectives - Interview with NAMINH Deputy Director, Susan Steams,
https://www.voutube.com/watch?v=MDvKLo06dXR.

2018 SB 51- Establishing a commission to study expanding mental health courts statewide.
■ https://bit.Iv/3nDV7i5.

2009 Reclaiming Our Future: A Pathway for Treating Co-Occurring Mental Health and
Substance Use Disorders in New Hampshire's Adolescents and Young AduUs,NAMI
New Hampshire. httos://bit.lv/3xmWXI-It.

2008 Raising Matthew: A Mother Reflects on Medicating Her Son, No Health without
Mental Health, Community Council of Nashua, NH, reprinted in Genesis Times, 2009.

2005 The Straggle for Justice: Seeldng Legal Equity for Parents with Mental Illness, RAP
Sheet: The Latest in Disability Research, Advocacy, Policy, and Practice, Winter Issue.
https://drcnh.org/wD-content/imloads/2021/03/20Q5WintefRAP.ndf.

1994 Mediation and Domestic Violence: Considerations for Mediators and Battered
Women, New Hampshire Bar Journal, Vol. 35, No. 2, p. 32, June.

21 Steams
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Skills

• Operational management

•  infrastructure planning
• Documentation compliance

• Accounting principles

understanding

• Risk management

• Reporting skills

• Strategic planning

» Financial & Human Resource

administration

• Executive leadership

» Team building and leadership

• Financial leadership

• Strategic business planning

• Revenue growth

• Policy development

• Construction Project

Management

Education and Training

Bachelor of Science;

Business Administration,

Accounting

BRYANT UNIVERSITY

Professional

Certifications

Certified, internal Auditor

Designation

TAMMY E, MURRAY

Summary

Resourceful Non-Profit Chief Financial Officer prepared to leverage twenty
years of experience to support operations of mission driven organization.
Expertise in Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, grant compliance,
reporting and auditing. Human Resource experience in talent and
performance management, compensation and benefits, compliance and
workplace safety. Strong leader with calm presence and ability to build
relationships across ail organizational levels.

Experience

NAMI New Hampshire - Chief Ffnanclal Offlcer

Concord, New Hampshire

06/2001 - Current

• Integral member of senior management team providing strategic vision,
leading complex nonprofit organization with multiple funding sources
including federal, state contracts, Medicaid eligible services and an
affiliated structure with diverse program areas delivered nationally.

» Developed forward-looking, predictive models and activity-based
financial analyses to provide insight into the organization's operations
and business plans while managing organizational risk,

• Implemented controls for Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable and
General Ledger, ensuring accuracy, consistency and compliance with
funders' requirements including Office of Management and Budget
Uniform Administrative requirements, cost principles and audit

requirement for federal awards.

• Achieved unqualified audit opinions, with no material weaknesses or

deficiencies during entire tenure of position.
» Developed financial measurement standard and system to monitor

performance against goals including budgeting, forecasting and business
models.

• Engaged finance committee in investment, and asset management,

growing activities by $1,5M.
• Led and executed real estate acquisitions, renovations of organization's

two facilities, reducing overhead expenses and enhancing

organization's visibility.

• Designed succession planning, talent review and performance

management processes across the organization.
• Developed and managed employee benefit programs including 403{b} plans
ensuring compliance with ail regulatory requirements,

•  identified IT system upgrade requirements to accommodate expanding
growth, and compliance.

• Oversaw acquisition of copyright and trademark designations for

evidenced based training products to sustain revenue generation
activities.
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TAMMY E, MURRAY cont

OfficeMax, Incorporated • Field Operations Manager
Cleveland, Ohio

OfficeMax, Incorporated • Senior Internal Auditor

Cleveland, Ohio

Balfour Company - Collection Services Manager

Attleboro, Massachusetts

Balfour Company - Senior Auditor/Accountant

Attleboro, Massachusetts

The Jan Companies - Staff Accountant

Cranston, Rhode Island

Awards

Business Excellence in Non Profit Management Sep 2019, New Hampshire

Business Review

Outstanding Women in Business Award Nominee Jan 2019, New Hampshire
Business Review

Excellence In Non Profit Management Jun 2008, The Corporate Fund
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Hodgkjns
Adult Program

Director

Dedicated, mission-driven program and volunteer manager who
effectively engages community members, staff, and volunteer
leaders. Adept at assessing community needs and matching with
organization goals to meet grant and strategic plan deliverables.
Specializes in maintaining strong and respectful relationships with
stakeholders.

WORK EXPERIENCE

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science/ Psychology
Keene State College

1992-1996

Certified Volunteer Administrator

April 2023,

EXPERTISE

Event Planning

Project Management

Voiunteer Administration

Problem-Solving

Leadership

Critical Thinking

Teamwork

Adult Program Director
NAMI NH I Concord, NH | 2022-Current
Oversee administration of volunteers throughout the organization,
working across teams to create agency wide volunteer practices. Manage
NAMI signature programs, grants, and grassroots volunteer operations.
•  Utilizing voiunteer administration best practices to work towards

agency strategic plan goals.
•  Closing workforce and organizational capacity challenges and

gaps by strategically recruiting, training, and engaging skilled
volunteers.

Education and Support Program Coordinator
, NAMI NH I Concord, NH | 2014 - 2022
Coordinate and oversee state-wide events and programs that are
facilitated by trained volunteers. Utilizing the strategic plan as a guide,
seeking opportunities to grow our community connections and access to
programming that benefits Granite Staters affected by mental illness and
suicide.

♦  Manage staff working on program deliverables, providing timely
and effective feedback on their performance.

•  Maintain relationships with valuable organization volunteers,
offering opportunities to be part of our mission driven
programming.

♦  Recruit, screen, and train new volunteers and connect them with
mentors in their community. Organize and facilitate quarterly
meetings to maintain their connection to the organization.

♦  Plan, coordinate, and execute the NAMI NH Annual Conference.

Training and Event Coordinator
independent Contractor [ Concord, NH | 2008-2012

Facilitated group process to plan and implement conference and event
programs. Maintained strict budget and work guidelines for
competency-based outcomes. Researched and contracted with
nationally recognized training experts. Connected and communicated
with staff to Increase their buy in to programming changes.
Program Director
NFi North | Concord, NH | 2002-2006

Planned and implemented trainings and conference events for statewide
child welfare staff according to strict contract guidelines. Oversight of
contract budget. Revised outdated child welfare training, implementing
nationally recognized child welfare new employee training.
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KEY ADMINISTRATJVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:

Name of Program:

NAM! New Hampshire

Family Mutual Support Services

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY2024

PERCENT PAID AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS FROM THIS

JOB TITLE SALARY CONTRACT CONTRACT

Susan Steams Executive Director $160,000 0.00% $0.00

Bemedette Seifert Deputy Director, $114,490 5.00% $5,724.50

Liz Hodgkins Director of Adult Services $85,000 67.00% $57,352.00

Tammy Murray Chief Financial Officer $144,442 6.00% $8,666.52

Elaine de Mello Director of Suicide Prevention $90,950 0.00% so.oo

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request). $71,743.02

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY 2025

PEftiSNT PAID AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS FROM THIS

NAME JOB TITLE SALARY CONTRACT CONTRACT

Susan Steams Executive Director $160,000 0.00% .  . $0.00

Bemedette Seifert Deputy Director $114,490 5.00% $5,724.50

Liz Hodgkins Director of Adult Services $85,600 67.00% $57,352.00

Tammy Murray Chief Financial Officer $144,442 6.00% $8,666.52

Elaine de Mello Director of Suicide Prevention $90,950 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $71,743.02
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V; • --I STATE OF NEW IIAMPSHISE

f Sv ■.-I . DIPARTMINT OFffiAOT AND HUMAN SEEVICES
mnSimF0RS£MA¥mMALH£Aim

"  :»SAEASANT STREET, CONOTRD,NH 03301IntetocSMLtr #3471-fS44 I.8W4S2-334SRsf.9544
F«! «3-2?i4332 f»» Awss; l-S0ft-73S49« www.dhh$.ote.iov

K««]#&Fos
Dii^ctor

. April 27, 2023

His Excelleney, Governor Christophsr'T, Sununu
and th© HonofaWeCoyrtell

State Hpuis©
Concord, New Hamf^hfre 03301

•REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contact with NAMl New Hampshire (VC #166630), Concord, NH, for family
mutual support and suicide prevention services, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $1,534,664 from $1,337,739 to $2,872,403 and extending th©
completion date from June 30,2023 to June 30.2025, effective July 1,2023, Uf»n Governor and
Council approval 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30,2021, Item #18,
and amended with Governor and Council approval on June 15,2022, item #22.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024
and 2025, upon the availability and-continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items within ttie price limitation and ©ncumbranGes
between stats fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

■  " . S®® atticbod fiscal details. -

EXPLAWATION

The purpose of.this request is to, allow the Contractor to continue providing family mutual
support, puWio edocation and suicide prevention services through support, education and
advocacy for adults and families afferSed by Serious Mental Illness tSMI), as well as ■children and
their families affected by Serious Emotional. Disturbanco fSED).

Additionally, the Contractor will hire one (1) full time Engagement .Coordinator-who will
sc^lidt input, convene and coordinate ©..Stakeholder Advisory Council, facilitate the deyelopment
of partnerships, and prb^rido technical assistance to commynlty mental health centers to.

.  Incorporate consumer :and family Input into organizational activities, as required by the, grant
awarded by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. Approximately
22,000 Individuals will be served from July 1,2023 through June 30,202S.

The Contractor provides services to aduHs 18 years of age and older with SMI, and
children under 18 years of age with SED, and their family members, as well as mental health
service providers and the general public.

The Contractor will continue to provide peer-run support groups, education, classes,
trainings, and advocacy opporWnittes for Individuate and .families affected by mental illhtss
throughout th© state. They will' also continy© to provide an array of training sessions on best
pracflcss for suicide preverttlon and post intervention for individuals, family members, service
providers, and the. general public. In addition, crisis intervention, suicide intervention, and peer
teadorship training sessions will be provided.
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His Exo^ency, Govemof Christopher t; Sununu
and the Honoralrie Councit

Page 2 of 2

The Contra<aor will continue providing information to the public through wefci-based media,
and distribute electronic and printed materiafs, upon approval by the Department, on topics that
include family support and eduction programs and resources for survivors of a suicide loss. .

The Contractor participates on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Council as a
member organization, and will support Implementation of the goals of the suicide prevention
council's strategic plan.

The Department vrili monitor services to ensure the Contractor provides;

• A minimum of eight (8) training sessions each month;

• One-on-one family support programming for a minimum of 125 individuals
annually;

• Wel>-bdS8d support groups to serve a minimum of 120 famiiies/caregivers
annually;

•  Family, friends, peer, and caregiver education classes for a minimum of 176
partidpants annually;

• Responsestoaminimumof 1,000 phone, e-mail, social media messaging, and/or
in-person inquiries annually; and

• Community presentations to a minimum of 400 family members and the general
public annually on a variety of topics related to promoting awareness of treatment
and recovery, suicide prevention and early Interventions, and advocacy.

•  in-Reach services to residents at tiie Glencliff Home through an In-Reach Liaison
\a4io, in collaboration with ttie in-reach case manager, assists residents with
exploring steps to transitioning bad< Into the community.

• One (1) full time Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator
(Enge^ement Coordinator) to inform the development of the NH CCBHC model.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to ejctsnd the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two
(2) years of the four <4) years available. ,

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals with severe
mental Illness, their families, and parents and families of children with serious emotional
disturbances may not have access to these services that assist them to navrigate the mental health
system. In addition, families and professionals may not have access to training, or to support
. group leadership and advocacy networks that provide assistance to prevent suicide, which could
result in an Increase in the rate of suicides statewide.

Area served: Statevwde,

Respectfully submitted.

LXAA.

•  Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Department efHealth and Human Sermm'Mission is to join communities and families
in providingopporiunHies for cilitens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
RFP-2022-OBH^1-FAMIL.01.A02

FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

05-95-092-922010-41190000 HEALTH ANO SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS

DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
FAMILY MUTUAL SUPPORT SERVICES
100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Inc^^e

fDecreasel
Re\4sed Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts tor Prooram Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Senrices 92204119 $522,637.00 SO.OO $522,637,00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $0.00 $522,637.00 $522,637.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $0.00 $522,637.00 $522,637,00

Sub Tola! Sf.045.274.00 $1,045,274.00 $2,090,548.00

05-9Sm92-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVCS

DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Currerrt Amount

increase
•  fDecreasei

Reused Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 3100.000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Serwes 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $0,00 $192,465.00 $192,465.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $0.00 SI 92.465.00 $192,465.00

Sub Total $292,465.00 $384,930.00 $677,395.00

05-95.^392-922010-19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVCS

DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
SAMHSA GRANT

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

increase

fOecreaset
Revised Amount

2024 102-500731 Conlracis for Program SetMc^ TBD $0.00 $104,460.00 $104,460.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TED $0.00 SO.OO $0.00

Sub Total $0.00 $104,460.00 $104,460.00

TOTAL $1,337,739.00 $1,534,664,00 $2,872,403.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Family Mutual Support Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and NAMI New
Hampshire ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
oh June 30,2021 (Item #18), as amended on June 15,2022 (Item #22), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 Genera! Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,872,403

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Add Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #2. Additional Scope of Services, Community and Stakeholder
Engagement Coordinator, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. ModifyExhibitC, PaymentTemis, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1, SFY 2022 Budget through Exhibit C-7, Amendment
#2, SFY 2025 Glencliff Home In-Reach Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 7, to read:

7. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Exhibit B-1,
Amendment #1, Giencliff Home In-Reach Services, and Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #2,
Additional Scope of Services, Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator, In
compliance with funding requirements.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 8, to read:

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be \Mthheld, in vsrhole or In part
in the event of non-compliance wnth the terms and conditions of Exhibit B, Scope of Services,

,  'Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1, Glencliff Home In-Reach Services, and Exhibit B-2 - Amendment
#2, Additional Scope of Services, Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator.

8. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached-hereto, and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit 0-5, Amendment #2, SFY 2024 Budget, Glencliff-Home In-Reach Budget, which is

NAMl New Hampshire A-S-1,3 Contractor Initials.
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attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein,

10. Add Exhibit C-6. Amendment #2, SPY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-7, Amendment #2, SPY 2025, Glencliff Home In-Reach Budget.

DS

OT-lJ-
NAMl New Hampshire A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ,
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Al! terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

'  , State of New Hampshire ^
Department of Health and Human Services

4/27/2023

Date

OfiiuSleniiOtiv:

Name;Katja s. fox

Title; oi rector

4/27/2023

Date

NAMI New Hampshire
by:

I  L..
i  --r
lsjarne:SSs^ steams
Title. Executive Director

NAM! New Hampshire

RFP-2022-DBH-01 -FAMIL-01-A02

A-S-1.2
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The preceding Amendm'ent, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/29/2023
r48734«4«1<80.,.

Date NametRobyn suarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certily that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title;

NAMI New Hampshire A-S-l .2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.
Temporary Staff Services \

EXHIBIT B-2 - Amendment #2

Additional Scope of Services

Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator

1. Overview and Statement of Work ,

1.1. The Contractor must provide one (1) full time Community and Stakeholder
Engagement Coordinator (Engagement Coordinator) who will:

1.1.1. Coordinate, convene, and solicit input from a Stakeholder Advisory
Council while collaborating with the DHHS Coordinated
Comprehensive Behavioral Health Care (CCBHC) Project Director;

1.1.2. Facilitate the development of partnerships; and '

.  1.1.3. Provide technical assistance to Community Mental Health Centers
(CMHCs) to incorporate consumer and family Input into organizational
activities.

1.2. During the planning year, the Contractor must ensure the Engagement
Coordinator:

1.2.1. Engages Cohtractor staff and stakeholders to inform the development
of the NH CCBHC model, which incudes, but is not limited to;

1.2.1.1. Peers.

1.2.1.2. , Family members.

1.2.1.3. Communities In stakeholder workgroups.

1.2.2, Obtains stakeholder Input throughout the state from individuals with
■  SUD and/or mental Illness, families and others affected by SUD and/or

mental illness, and stakeholder organization, ttirough regional listening
sessions. Stakeholder organizations include, but are not limited to:

1.2.2.1. Ascentria Care Alliance.

,  1.2.2,2. National Hispanic Institute, (NHi) New England Chapter.

1.2.2.3. Mt. Kearsarge Indian Museum (MKIM). ■ i

1.2.2.4. Rural Outright.

1.2.2.5. Hope for NH Recovery (HNHR).

1.2.2.6. NH Harm .Reduction Coalition.

1.2.2.7. Farnum Center in Manchester.

1.2.2.8. R.O,A.D to Better Life in Nashua.

1.2.2.9. Headrest. Inc.

1.2.2.10. Families in Transition (FIT).

1.2.2.11. Harbor Homes.

RFP-2022-D8H-01-FAMtL-01-A02 Contmctof Initiate

472772023
NAMl New Hampshire Page 1 bf 3 Date ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Temjporary Staff Services

EXHIBIT B.2-Amendment #2

1.2.2.12. Waypolnt.

1.2.2.13. Youth M.O.V.E New Hampshire.

1.2.2.14. Mental Health Courts.

1.2.2.15. NH Mental Health Peer Support Agencies. "

1 -2.3. Ensures input is received from populations including, but not limited to;

1.2.3.1. Black. Latino, Indigenous and Native American persons,
Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders and other persons of

'  color.

1.2.3.2, Members of religious minorities.

'  1.2.3.3. Lesbian, gay, bisexual, Iransgender, and queer (LGBTQ+)
persons.

'  1.2.3.4. Persons with disabilities.

•1.2.3.5. Persons who live In rural areas.

1.2.3.6. Persons who have immigrated.

1.2.3.7. Personsof refugee status.

1.2.3.8. Persons of migrant status,

1.2.3.9. Youth persons.

\  1,2.3.10. Young adult persons.

1.2.3.11. Persons serving In the military.

1.2.3.12. Persons who are of Veteran status.

1.2.3.13. Persons otherwise adversely affected by persistent poverty
•  or Inequality.

1.2.4. Engages stakeholders to develop a process of board govemance or
.  other appropriate opportunities for meaningful input by consumers,

persons in recovery, and family members in GCBHC oversight

1.2.5. Provides support in the development and preparation of the application
to participate in a four (4) year GCBHC Demonstration Program.

1.2.6. Advocates to further expand opportunities to deliver coordinated,
'  comprehensive behavioral health care through the GCBHC model.

1.2.7. Attends the monthly Department CCBHC Leadership team meeting.

I  ■ ■

G
09

RFP-2(J220BH-01-FAM!L-01-A02 Contractor Irtllals
4/27/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Temporary Staff Services

EXHIBIT B-2 - Amendment #2

1.3. Reporting

1.3.1. The Contractor must submits a Stakeholder Engagement Progress
Report to the Department CCBHC Leadership team on a monthly
basis.

1.3.2. The contractor must submits quarterly reports to the Department
CCBHC Leadeship Team that includes, but is not limited to:

1.3.2.1. Stakeholder engagement activities.

1.3.2.2. Feedback received.

-I5S

I

RFP-2022-DBH-01.FAM1L-01.A02 Conlfactor Initials
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Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, SPY 2024 Budget RFP-2022-06H-01-FAMII,-0X-A07

New Hanf^shlre OepartmeM of Hssltli and Hitman Seivlcss
Contractor Nawa: NAMlNiw HampsMre

'  SudflolRoouaatfor! Famt/yMwtoafStwwf Sooftces.

Sudaai Porlod •/«'/'< 5023 • vftwie 50, J?024

Indlfocl Cost Roto (If aDPllcable) 26.6% of salaries and wages only

Uno Item . , ' Program Cost ■ Funded by 0HH3

1. Salatv& Wanes •  • ■ 402.234

i
2. Frifloa Benetits V  85.941

3. Consutlants
$0

'• . ■

4. Equipment
Mlrect cost rats cannot bo applied to equipment costs per g CFR 200.1 end
Aooendix rv to 2 CFR 200.

$0

.

6.(a) SupjSies • Gducationat
' $18,580

5,(6} Supplies • I.Bb
$0

6.(0) Supplies • Pttarmacy ,
$0

5.{d} Suif^llas' Medical
$0

5.(0} Supj^esQflico
$0

6. Travel " ' ,
'  , . $i.640

7, SoRware

■' . ' < $0

8. (a) Ottier • Markstinp/Communications
j  $6,868

8. (b) Ottier - Education end Tralnlnp

8. (c) OttiDf - Other (soedfy t>do»4

Poslaga
$2,500

Su/cfde Pmventlon Cound!
$100,000

Oiher (please spedfy)
'  , $0

Other Oileosa specify)
$0

9. Subredolent Contracts $2,340

Total Direct Costs $620,103

tbiallivdirfici Costa $106,994

:'-U

TOTAL 1  ■ 9727.097

/-—•OS

^LkS

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-5, Amendment #2, SPY 2024 Glencliff Home In-Reach Budget

New Hsmpatilre Department of Hoeltfi omt i^umsn Servtcee
ConvlBlo one budget lorn) tor each budget (tetlad.

CORIractor Noma: NAMI New Hampshire
ButScMtdaauesHor; ̂emlh'Mutual Support Services

Budtioi Period July i. SOSS • Juno 30, S0S4

Indirect Cost Reta (If oBolIcableJ 2S.6% of salaries and wages only

\  . Unoltem Program CostFunded by OHMS
*  . :Si^_ . «• iX '■'*

(. SafarvaWaoes

V  ' S49,520

2. Fcinoe Barents
'  . sis.eta

3. Consultants
50

4. Equlpmmi
Indirect cost rate cannot bo applied to
equlpm«)tcos(sper2CI^2Q0.1 and
AooendlxlVloSCFFIZtiO.

$0

5.(8) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(t>) Supplies-Lob . w
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d} Supplies • I4edical ■  $0

5.(0} Supplies Office $0

6. Travffi

$12,495
i

7. Soitware • $0

8. (a) Oihef • ftofteling/
Ommunicalions

$860

8. (b) Other - Edueailim and Ttalnlno
$0

8. (c) Other - Cffiicr fsoocifv below)

Personal Care flex funds *  ' $2,000
"N

Fuel and Care Civer Assistance Pool $1iOOQ

Staff Peveiopment .  $500

Ofher (Wsaso specrty)
■  , $0

9. SubreclDtent Conlracts

$0

Total Direct Costs $79,293

Total Indirect Costs f  $13,172

TOTAL $82,465

Pago 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

4/27/2023
Date
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Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, SPY 2025 Budget

Humpfhtff tEhipsr^rtt Oi Int} Hixmftn 9«ivbst»

Buaaof pmod

Coti Bit* (If ♦«>9ciiWiJ $eam»sf^

Un« ,  * RrftfirtfrtCOrt'fMfttfWt&lrOMHS!

1. SUbfV^WMM 3ii?j9ft«

2. e9,M7

3. CorQtllSflte , , ,

S9

^r2CPn»».t
ivtosjcyfiim

SO

S tftl SupjpSct. EtfuBtdcmit

%\i,m

\

Su(ig&i» Uit»

5,t«I Swii^ •«««»«*
'  . ■ $0

5.(d) &uppSavM««lctU
SO

S,[«) Suppi«fC((%«
$0

6, Tri*^

$m

so

6. M OshM • MHMIiflQr CoirrrsfikM'ion*
W.(03

6, tka ' StkK*^ »<id
S2.3*a

Posm* " .
12.500

PrnvtiUkm CwntH
StCO,COO

SO

■m

%. 8ubr*d£S*mC(»nt}«£ts
M

••

Tout Ofi^ Casl» tS32.aiO

T<^«t hiiiiitci Cosu u9.eto
-

tOTAU f»23.937

Contractor I nltlsl«_

DS

kSLkS

4/27/2023
*^•'04 I Oate_
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Exhibit C-7, Amendment #2, SPY 2025 Glencliff Home In-Reach Budget

Now Hampohire Oepartittant of Hoatlh and Human Services
Complolo one buaget farm tar each tmclgai period.

Contractor Name: mmhewmmpme
Budgof Beguesi let: Family AfuiuslSt^^xiri Services

Budget Period Jt/j' >. ̂ 24 -Jima 30, SPSS
Indirect Cost Rato{il aoalleabtel 28-6% ol salaries and wages orrly

Unb Itom IRf ogrdm Oo$t • FHjnded by OHHS.

—J7-.

•V f

J

t. SaiOT&waoca

2. Fringe Beneiils

$49,520

$12,910

3.. Consuliants

4^ Equipment
Indirect cosi raio cannot lx> ̂ lied to
equipment costs per 2 CFft 2(50.1 and
APDencfnilV|o2CFRm

S.<a) Supplies - Educations^

5.(b) Supplies

S.(c| Supplies > Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

$0

$0

$0

$0

Ji
$0

$0S.(e> Supplies Office

6. Travel

■ $12,495

7. Software
SO

8.(a)Other-Moth8ilng/
Communications

$8S0

8. tb> Other • Educallon and Training

6. tc) ahflf • Other (spediv b^owi

$0

Personal Care Fiet Funds $2,000

Fuel and Care Giver Assistance Pool

Staff Oewrlopment .

St ,000

$500

outer (ploasa speaTy)

9. Subreclpient Contracts

$0

$0

$79293Total Direct Costs

Total tndiroet Cost 8 $13.172

TOTAL
y—OS

sSuS
Contractor Initials

Pofl01 of 1 Date_
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STATE OF NEW MAMPSHCRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

BIVlSfON FOR BEHA VtORAl HBAIW

l» PLEASANT STWCT;C<»»C0RD,NH 03301
«»-37Jw«M4 1^51-3345 Eft 5KM4

Ffx:0l»-3?i4333 TD» At<«i: l-mt-ns-tm ww.<lhla.nli.gov

May 23, 2022

His Excellency, Govomor ChristopharT. Sununu
and the Honorabfo Council .

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 ^ .

RgQUEaTEP ACTION ■■■

Authorize the Department of Heallh and Human Services, Division for.Beha^rioral Health,
to amend an existing contract wth NAMI New Hampshire (VC#166630), Concord, NH,
mutual support and "suidde prevention services, tjy Increasing the price limitation by $142,^
ftom $1,196,274 to $1,337,739 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30,2023,
effediye upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds."

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30,2021, itern #18.
Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Yearn 2022 and.2023, with

the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
OS-95-092.92201tM11SIKM)0-102.S00731 HEALTH AND SOCtAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN 8VCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF, BUREAU OF fWENTAL
health services, family MUTUAL SUPPORT SERVICES

State
Fiscal
Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2022 102-500731
Corrtrads for
ProgSvc

92204119 $497,637 $25,000 $522,637

2023 102-500731
Contrads for
Prog Svc

92204119 $497,637 $26,000 $522,637

Subtotal $986,274 $69,000 $1,046,274

0S<9S-09
HUMAN
HEALTH

2-922010-4111
SVC8 DEPT
SERVICES. C

VOOO-102-9iD0731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, H
OF, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALtH DIV OF, BUREAU <
MH PROGRAM SUPPORT

EALTH AND

OF MENT/)L

State

Fiscal
Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job
Number

Currant

Budget >

Increased

(Decreased) •
. Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contrads for
Prog Svc-

92204117 $100,000 $0 $100,000

7Vi« Departmtnt ofHtnUh and Human Stmicea'Minhn ii (ojoin (ontmunitltt and famiUtt
in pravidinS oppertmUits fdrcitiun* to ocAiewf htatlhond indtptndtna.
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2023 102-S00731
Contracts for
ProgSvc •

92204117 $100,000 192,465 $ie2;465

& Subtotat $i8QM0 192,465 $mMs

y  Total $1,185,274 $142,465 $1,337,739

EXPLAMATION

The purpose of this request is to add SSO.OOt) that was appropriated in the State's operating
budget for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 to support Nl-Ts Famify Mutual Support Services., This
Increase in fOrKiing is criltca! to sustaining family mutual support and suicide prevention services
through support, education and advocacy for people affected by mental illness. Additionfdiy, ttiis
request Includes funding and an expanded scope of services for the Gfencliff Home ln-Rea<^
Liaison position. This position ensures In-Readi services are available to residents at Gtanciiff
Home by working collatxiretively with staff, comrnunity providers and residents and their families
and guardians to transition into community-based settings.

Approximately 11,000 individuals and families vwil be served through June 30.2023.

The Contractor will continue providing family mutual support, public education, and suicide
prevention servl<»s through support, education and advocacy to adults age 18 years of age and
older with a Serious Menial Illness, and their families; children underage 18 years of age with
Serious Emotional Distuibance, and their families; professional staff members providing services
to these populations; and the general public.

Services Include peer-run support groups, education classes, trainings, and advocacy
opportunities for Individuals and families affected by mental illness throughout ttie state. Ttie
Contractor will also continue providing, an array of training sessions on best practices for suicide
prevention and post intervention for individuals, family members, service providers, and the
general public, including additional training sessions on crisis intervention, suidde intervention
and peer leadership training.

TTie Contractor participates on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Council as a
member organization, and serves as the fiscal agent for $100,000 of designated state general
•funds to support implementation pf the goals of the Suicide Prevention Council's strategic plan
and vrill continue providing information to the public through web-based madia, and distribute
electronic and printed tfialerials, wth approval from the Department, on topics that include family
support and education programs and resources for survivors of a suicide loss.

The Department wrfil continue to monitor services using the following performance
measures;

•  The total number of training.sesslons provided during the previous month.

»  The number df indivriduais who participated in each training session.

•  Individual and collective results of pre and post tests for each type of training.

• The number of contacts made with stakeholders and thegeneral public in providing
mental health support and resources, and public speaking engagements.

» The number of web-based/electronic postings and resources disseminated each
month. •
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•  The number of technical assistance hours spent with education, su|:^ort, and
leadership programs.

• The number of residents served through the Glencllff In-Reach Liaison position.

Should the Governor and Council not aultioraa this request, them may not be adequate
support services for families of individuals .with savere and persistent mental illness, or for parents
and families of children wHh Serious Emotional Disturbances who are trying to navigate the mental
health system. Additionally,- famiKes, peers, and mental health professionals may not have
opportunities to participate In training; support group leadership; and advocacy networks that
assist tham to help prevent suicide, or to help individuals affected by suidde.

Area served; Statewide

Respectfully submilted,

LoriA. ShiWnette

Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9DF-4679-81EB-B80B15674471

OocuSIgn Envelope ID; C14FB175-12FE-4130-S7B3-C91COF11 E4Ag

OQCuSIgn Envetepc) ID: SF83SEF£>EFB4-43E1-S§6&&0$8C0$12(I8$

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Family. Mutual Support Services contract Is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("Slate" or "Department") and NAM! New
Hampshire {"the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30,2021, (ltem#15). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form Pr37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval.from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these S6rvices;'and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: ,

1, Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,337,739 .

2, Form P.37, General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director ? .

3, Add Exhibit 8-1 - Amendment #1, Glencliff Home In-Reach Services, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

A. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2. as follows:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibil C-1, Amendment #1 SPY 2022 Budget through Exhibit C-2, Amendment #1
SFY 2023 Budget

5. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budgel^Form by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-1 Amendment #1 SFY
2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-2, Budget by replacing it in Its entirety with Exhibit C-2 Amendment #1 SFY 2023
Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-3 Amendment #1 SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

|ss
nAM) New Hampshire A-S-1.2 Conlraclor Initials ..

RFP-2022.DBH.01.FAMIL-01.A01 Pagel0f-3 * Dale



Dc^uSign Envelope ID; EF3235AD-F9DF-4679-81EB-B80B15674471

DocuSlgn Envelope ID; Cl4FBl75-1ZFe-4130-8783-C9lC0F1lE4AE

DeouSIgn Eflyelcpe ID; 5F93BeF6.EFe4-43E1-j9^Bb55C<»120Be

All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain iri full force and effect.
This Amendment.shalt be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

*  ' State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

S/24/2027

Date

-r-— by:

S-

Title: Oi rector

S/23/2022

Date

NAMl New Hampshire
by;

Title: Executive Director

NAMI New Hampshire

RFP-202 2.DBH-01-FAMIL01-A01

A.S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. . ' * .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/24/2022 ' . . •

Date Narne no

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;

Title:

NAMl New HampsWfo A-S-1.2"

RFP.2022-D8H-01-FAMIL^1-A01 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mental Health Services

Exhibit B«1 - Amendment #1

Giencliff Home In-Reach Services

1. Giencliff Home In-Reach Liaison

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure In-Reach services are available to residents at the
Giencliff Home through an In-Reach liaison who. in coilatjoralion with the In-
Reach Case Manager:

1.1.1. Assists reskJenls withexploring options for living in the commonity.

1.1.2. Provides Infonmalion to residents relative to community-based opportunities.

1.1.3. Assists residents with acquiring skills to be active members of the.
community. • .

1.1.4. Offers support to enable individuals to venture out and participate in
community-based re-engagemeiit opportunlUes,

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure the In-Reach Liaison coordinates access to Giencliff
Home residents; scheduling and transportation; and other services wito the
Department-designated Giencliff Home staff.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure the in-Reach Liaison abides by Giencliff Home
policies and practices Identified as applicable to the In-Reach Liaiwr> by the
Department.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure the IrvReaoh Liaison works in partnership with
residents and staff at Giencliff Home, the In-Reach Case Manager, as well as •
guardians, if applicable, and community-based providers and agendes to assist
residents with their planning and transition process.

1.5. The Contractor shail ensure the tn-Reach Liaison;

•. . 1.5.1. Supports case coordination and transition planning efforts currently in
ptac® at Giencliff Home.

1.5.2. Engages In shared learning vwth Giencliff Home residents regarding the
values of integrated community-based living.

1.5.3. Collaborates wilh the resident, Giencliff Home staff, the In-Reach Case
Martager and community providers to achieve the goals idenUfied in the
resident's transition plan.

2. Performance Outcomes and Reporting

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure ttet residents are better prepared to
'  return to community-based living, as evidenced by;

2.1.1. Engaging In shared learning activities with th© fn-Reach
Ualson around the values of integrated community-based
living. ' "

• 2,1,2. Meeting with the In-Reach Liaison and In-Reach Case
Manager and, whqn applicable, family members, guardian,
Glendiff Home staff, and other specified supports to identify
concerns or reservations regarding community-based living
and developing strategies to address or resolve such
concerns and reservations.

.;(il
NAM I New Hampshire , Exhibit B-1 ♦ Atricttdmcrtl flf Contractor Initials;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-3 Amendment <11 SPY 2023

Contractor NAME: NAMI New Hampshire

Project Title: Family Mutual Support Scrvias
Budget Period: SFY 2023

Item Oescriptioii July-June

-*■■■

Glencliff Staff . ;
20 hours per week to provide peer support
services to residents; S30 hr.

$31,200

Glencllff Staff-Fringe
PICA, Medicare, SUTA, Workers Comp, 4038
Match, J12.S5% fringe

$4;04'0

Sub-total $35,240

TrsnsportationjUsing Prc-Pa'ndemic rates)
Estimated $970 per month, 24000 miles peryc3r@
,485/mi to transport consumers to access supports
and services.

$12,000

Uability Insurance
Additional iiability irisurance required for
transporting ci»enis,$1.125/emp!oyee

Sl,12S

Technology Purchase new laptop and set-up, $900/ea. S900

Cell phone $70/oer monthyemplovee, contract $840

HIPAA Zoom license Additional Zoom license for virtual meetings. $230

.IS FTE, $122,000 $18,300

Supervision-fringe
FICA, Medicare, SUTA, Workers Comp, 403B
Match, Health, Dental & Ufe 36.2X fringe

$6,625

Total Peer Support Specialist $75,280

Other:

Personal Care Flex funds

Based an previous actual, funds to provide
residents with persoiuil care items, transj^rtation,
etc. to assist during the re-integration process •
when other financial resources are not available,
i.e. bus ticket, taxi voucher, co-pay assistance, etc.

$3,500

Fuel and Care Giver Assistance Pool
Purchase of Gas Gift Cards to family members who
need financial assistance to attend Family events

$2,000

Staff Development
NAMI NH Staff attendance at training conferences
or webinars. S300

$300

• #

Sub-Total: Other $S,«>0
S11.3S5

Total . $92,465
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LofI
ConxaliiloiHr

ia(}kS.Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

mmiON FOR BEMAViORAL HEALTH

1» PHEASANT STREei, CONCORD, NH OMOl
603-171-934< I.80<MI51-J3<5£*t054<

F«i: 603-27M3)i TODAccom! l-fiOO-lJS-lOM vnrw,deilu.oh.gav

^  -/i

June 9,2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department o1 Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter info a contract with NAMl New Hampshire (VC#166630). Concord, NH, in the amount of
$1,195,274 for family mutual support and suicide prevention services with the option to renewfor
up to four <4) additional years, effectrve upon Governor and Council approval for the period from
July 1.2021, through June 30,2023.100% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in in the following accounts for State Flscal Years
2022 and 2023, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budgel line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
tietween state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05.95-092.922010-41190600.102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL
HEALTH services; FAMILY MUTUAL SUPPORT SERVICES

sbte
Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
CiasB Title Job Numtxer Total Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204119 $497,637

2023 1.02-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204119 $497,637

.. '
Subtotal $995,274

05-9S-092.922010-41170000-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF," HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH D»V OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT ,

State

Fiscal Year

Class /
Account

Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 $100,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 '  $100,000
1

Subtotal $200.0(110

Total $1,195,274

Tht Dtpofinirnt ofHeaith ond Human Strtnett'Miuion it lojoin communitUt ond (omiUet
in prtviding epfiortuaiUtt for dlhent w othicvr htalth and independence.
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His Excal^M^, G«iyermrCf»isUqjti«r T. Sununu
and tti0 Honofebis Coimdl

Page 2 of 3

EXPUNATtON

The purpose of this request is to provide family mutual support, putilic education, and
suicide prevention services through support, education and advocacy for adults and their families
affected by serious mental illness, as well es children and their families affected by serious
emotional disturbances.

The Contractonflflil provide services to adults age t6 years of age and older with a Serious
Mental Illness (SMI), and their families: children under ege 18 years of age with Serious Emotional
CSsturbance (SEO). and their families; professional staff members providing services to these
populations: and the genera! public. ^

/^proximately 11.000 individuals and families will be served from July 1.2021 to June 30.
2023.

The Contractor will provide peer-run support groups, education classes, trainings, and
advocacy opportunities for individuals and families affected by mental illness throughout the state.
They will also provide an array of training sessions on best practiais for suicide prevention and
post intervention for Indlvicluats. family members, service providertr. and the general public.
Additional training sessions on crisis Intervention, suicide intervention and peer leadership training
will provided.

The Contractor will also provide information to the public through web-based media, and
distribute electronic and printed materials, wilh approval from the Department, on topics that
include farhily support-end education programs and resources for survivors of a suicide loss.

The Contractor will participate ort the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Council as a
member organization, and will sarve as the fiscal agent for $100,000 of designated stale general
funds to support implementation of the goats of the suicide prevention council's strategic plan.

The Department virill monitor contracted services using the followng performance
measures;

•  The total number of training sessions provided during the previous month.

.  The number of Individuals who participated in each training session,

»  Individual and collective results of pre and post tests for each type" of training,

• The number of contacts made <«ith stakeholders and the general public in providing
merttal health support and resources, and public speaking engagements.

•  The number of web-basedfetectronic postings and resources disseminated each
month.

•  The numljer of technloat assistance hours spent with education, support, and
. leadership programs. " "

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process,using a
Request for .Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 3/30/2021
through 4/26/2021. The Department received one (1) response that was revlevred and scored by
a team of qualified Individuals, The Scoring Sheet is attached.

AS referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions. Section 1.
IRevisions to form P-37, General Provisions, Subsection 1.1 of the attached contract, the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to four <4) addilionat years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and
Council approval, • •
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WsExceltertcy. Governor Chftotoj^T.Surtoftu >
and the Koneratte Cowwft ?

pB0a3of3 ,

Stmfd the Governor and Coundt not authorize this request, individuals with severe and
persistent mental illness, thetrfafnHies, and parents and families of children with serious emotional ?

^  disturbances may not liave access to services that assist them to navigate the mental health
system, tn addition, families and professionals may not have access to training, or to support
group leadership and advocacy netwoiHs that provide assistance to prevent suitide. Tliis could , r
result in an increase in the rate of suicides stat^vhie. '

Area served: Statewide

Respectfully subrnltted, I

fj!AA,ihibiri8^
Lori A. Shibinetle

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

■Scoring Sheet

Family S^utuai Support Services RFP-2022-DBH'd AMIL

RFP Name RFP Number

.■ Maximum Actual
Bidder Name Pass/Fail Points Points
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OoCMSlgn Envelope ID: 5F93BEFE-€FB4-43ev8966.B055C0812089

OocuSlpn Swelope ID: F8O0I3Ti>«41C-*51A-M1i^B5ACE5a93FD
FORiV! NUiMBEK f.37<vcnion 12/11/2019)

SobJe«:_Faniily Mutxial Support Services {RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL)

Notice: TMis agfeemeni and all of its aUachmenis shall ̂ womc public upon submission lo Governor and
Executive Council for approval. -Any information that Is private, coaftdential or proprietary must
be clearly idcmified to the agency and agtecd to in vwiiing prior to signing the eontracl.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree a.'s follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS ' ,

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health artd Human Service."!

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street •

Concord. NM 03301-3857

1,3 Comracior Name

NAM 1 New H ampshirc

1.4 Contractor Address

85 North Slate Street .

Concord, NH 0330!

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)225-5359

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-922010-

41190000-102-500731

05-095-092-922010:
41170000-102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$1,195,274

1,9 Contracting OHicer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature

UmMaA (jCSOi baic6/S/202l

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Kenneth Norton, LlCStst

Executive Director

ljJ'^"^''Sat?XgeiKy Signature

Date:6/a/2021

t .14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja FOX

Director

i.B'^^^pfSvSI'B)' the N.H. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapfiiicnble)

-fir* " b«: &/9/2021 i * >

1.17 Approwfi^''tiic'do^nor Mid Executive Council (i/opplicftNc)

GACJtcm isumbcr: G&C Meeting Date;

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials tA*

Datew207i
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2. SEftVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Sialc of New
Hampshire, aciing through the agency ideniified in block' I.I
("State"), engages contractor jdcnlirted in block t.)
("CpftlractOf") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or safe of goods, or both, identified and more psnicularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETIO<N OP SERVICES.
3.1 Nolwithstandmg any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary,' and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
(his Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercundcr, shall
become clTcciivc on the dale the Governor and Esecuiive
Council approve this Agreement as indicaicd in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is fcqulrcd, in which ea.sc the Agreement
.shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Slate rNgencyas shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to ilw.
EITeciive Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior lo
the EITcciive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Coniraciof. and in ihcevcnt that thi.s AgrccmenI docs not become
cffcciivc, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any . costs incurred or Services performed.
Cotiitocior must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEiMEiNT.
Nolwthstapdin'g any provision.of this Agreement to the
contrary, ail obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limiiaiioft, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability artd continued appropriation of
rund.s afTceied by any .state or federal legi.slaiivc or cxccutist
action that' reduces, diminatcs or olhcrwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement artd
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any paymcnis
hereunder in excess of Such available apprr^riaied funds. In the
cvenl of B reduction or termination of appropriated funds, titc
State .Shalt have the right to withhold payment until Such fund.s
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to tctluce or
lermittate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or terminaiibn.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any,other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/I'KICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. •

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, aitd fcrtWi of payment
are identiried ai^ more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for nil
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the Only and the complete

compensation to ihe-Cohtractor for the Services. The Stale .shall
have no liability lo the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State rc.serves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Coitiracior utidcr this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or pcrmiTicd by H.fi. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the ■
contrary, and notwithstanding unc.xpcctcd circumstances,'in no
event shall the total of sil psymcnis authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Ericc Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. compliance bvcontractor with laws
and REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLbVMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with .all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, .state, county or municipal
aiiihoriiic.s which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil righi.s and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes,and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States is.suc to impiemcni lhc.ee regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contracior shall not
dl.seriminjMc against employee.^ or applicants for cmploymcm
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap. se.suar .
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmaiivc action to'
prevent such discrimination, i
6,3. The Contractor agrees to permit the Stale or United States
access to any o fihc Coirtr.actor'i books, records and account s for
the puqtosc of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and ordcr.s. and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PEBSaN:SEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own c.vpcnsc provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services, The Contractor warrants that
.ill pcrsttnnd engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise ouihorizcd to do so under all applicable law.s.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agrcemciu, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date,in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a cttmbined cft'ort to
perform l he 5ervicc.s to hire, an;? person who is a State employee
or ofncial. wlio is walerialty involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreeroem, This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Cnmraeting OfTiccr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shnll be ilic State's representative. In the event of any
(ii.spuic concerning tlic inlcrprctaiinn of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be fimil for the State.

a
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
S.l Any one or more of «h« folloiwng acis or omissions of ihc
Coniracwr shall consiitoic an event ofdefauli herconder ("Evem
orDcfauir'): " - '
.«.IJ failure to perform ilic Services sasisfactorily or oi>
schcdute;
8.1 .I failure Co submit any report required hcrcotrier; and'or
S. 1.3 failure to perform any oihc'r covcnani. term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Ocfauli, the State may
lake any one, or more, or all. oFthe rollowing aciio^:, -
8.2.1 give the Contracior a wiwcn notice specifying the Event of
Dcfauli and requiring it to be remedied within, in Ihc »b.«cncc of
a greater or lesser speci ficaiion of lime, thirty (30) day.s front the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cored,
tcrminwc this Agreement, cfrcclivc l«-0 (2) days aflei^giving ihc
Contractor rKstice of termination;
8.2.2 giw the Ceniraclor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all paymeni.s to be made tinder this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would Qihervvisc accrue to. ihc Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the F.vent of
Default and set olf against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Coniracior any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Cdniractora wriiicn notice specifying Ihe Event of
Oefauft, treat the Agrcemcni as breached, Icrminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8..3. No failure by the State to enforce any provislofl.s hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver ofits rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default- No exprcs.s failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a Waiver oftlte right ofthe State to enforce each and
' ail of the provisions hereof upon any further of other Evxni of
Default ott Ihc part of the Contractor.

P^TEKMINATION.

9.1 Notwiihsianiltng paragraph 8. the ,Statc may. al its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days'written notite' to the Contractor that
tltc State IS e.eercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the evqni of an early termination of this Agreement for
any rcastm other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (I S) days after the (3atc
of termination, .n report fTcrraination Report"} describlits in
detail all Services pcfformed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject mailer,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Rct>on shall
be identical to those of any Final Report dc-scribcd in the aliachcd
EXHIBIT 13. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Cowtracior
shall, within 15 days of notice of early Icrminalion, develop and
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submit to the State Jt Tran.siilan Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. OATA/ACCESSfCONFIDENTIALlTY/
PRESERVATION.

Vo.l As used in this Agretmcm. the word "data" shall mean all
information and thing.s developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
.Agreement, including, but not limited to. al! studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sountl rccortlitigs, vWco
recordings, pictorial rqjroductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
feprcscmations. computer programs, computer printcMJts. notes,
letters, mcmorunda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any properly which Itas been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, .shall be the property of the State, and
shall be rclqrned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other c.sisting law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, in the
performance of ihi.'t Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an (ndependcnt contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Cbniracior nor arty of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emofumenis proviticd by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMEKT/DELECATION/SUBCO.NTRACTS.
.12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
' intcrc.st in this Agrecincnl without the prior written notice, which
shad be provided lo the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a tvriticn consent of the State, For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
ajsigniiient. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transaclions in
which B third party, together vyith its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
wiing shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
ptswcr of the ContractOf, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of (he nsset.s of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subeontracted by .the
Contractor williout prior written notice and consent of the Slate.
The State is entitled to copic.s of all subcomracis and assignment
agreements and sltali not be bound by any provisions contained
(ti a subeoniraci or an assignment Bgrecmcnt to which it l.s not a
party.

13; INDEKINIFICATION. Ur>!c.s5 otherwise Mcmpied by law.
the Contractor shall indemnify and holtJ harmless the Slate, its
officers and employee.^, from and against any and all ctnims,
liabilities and costs for any personal ipjtiry or property damages,
patent or copyright i nfringcmern, or other claims nsscrtcd against
the Slate. il.s officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omission of the
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Coniracior. or subcontractors, including but nw fimiicd to ibc
negligence, feckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Cottlractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Noiwithaanding the foregoing, nothing'herein
contnincd shall be deemed to constitute s waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which imntunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
icrminatibn of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE,
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole e.vpense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subeoniraciof or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 eommcfcial general liability insurance ag<nin.si all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than Si,000.000 per occurrence and S2.000,000 aggregate
Of excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of lo.si coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph I E>.2 herein, in an amount rtoi less than
80% of the whole replacement value.of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms ond endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcpanmem of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Conlracior shall fumLsh to the Contracting Officer;
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccnificaicCs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agrecmcni.
Comraetof shall also fomwh lothcComraciingOntccr idcmiftcd
in block 1.9, or hi.s or her succc.ssor, ccnificaic(s) of insurance
for all icnewaKs) of insurance required uitdcr this Agreement no
later than ten (10) daj*s prior to the c.xpiraiion date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificaiefs) of insurance and any
renewals tlwreof shall be attached and are trtcorporaicd herein by
reference.

tS. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agrecmcnl, the Conlractor agrees, certifie.s
and warrants thai the Contractor is in compliance with or c.sempi
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28DA f'ltbr/im'
Compmsojio)i"J.
15.2 To the e.Htent the Contractor is subject to the fequiremcitts
of N.H. RSA chapter 28I'A. Contractor shall maintain, and
require any Subcontractor or assignee to secure and maint.tin.
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undcnake punsuant to this
Agreement. ThcConlraclor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or bis or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation In the. manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281 "A and any applicable renewals) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable Siute of New Hamp.shire
Wotkers' Compensation laws In cotmeei'ion with the •
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any nwkc by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by ccttificd mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
' Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given In

blocks 1.2 and 1,4. herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybe amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval'is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Stale law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agrecmem shall
be go^vrned, interpreted'and construed in ac'cordaiiee with the
law.s of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and as.signs. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to e.xpress their mutual intent, and no nile
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actiorB arising out of this Agreemcm shall be brought aiid
maintained in New'Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
c.xclustve jurisdiction thereof.

19. eONFLtCTIiVG TERMS. In. the event of a connict .

between the terms of this P-37 form.las modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or 8itachmcnt,s and amendment thereof, (he terms of the
P-.37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PAR'ITES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit,

21. headings. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for rcrcrence pur)K).scs only, and the words coiilatncd therein
shall in no way be held to c-xplain. modify, amplify or nid in the
interpretation, consiruction or meaning of the provi-sions of this
Agreemenl.

■22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
ptavi.sion.s set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by rerercncc.

2.3. SKVERABi l.ri'y. In the event any of the provi.siotts of this
Agreement sk held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agfccmem will remain in full force and cffeci, '

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT, 'fhis Agreement, which may be
c.xccuicd in a number of counterparts, each of wliieh shall be
deemed an original, consliiuics the entire agreement and
tmdcrsiandiiig between the pariie.s, and $upcrscdc.s all prior
agreements and undcr.standings with respect to the Subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services

EXHIBIT A

■'* ' Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Re\rfslons to Form P-37, General Provisions .
1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Complelion of Senrlces, is amended by adding

subparagraph 3.3 as follows; ,
3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to (our (4) additional years

from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegalion/Subcontracts. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:
12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the

Contractor and the Contractor is 'responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to' be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor^ shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective

,  action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontractor performance.
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New Hampshire Deparlmerit of Health and Hupian Services
Family Mutual Support Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work .

1.1. The Contractor.shail provide services in this Agreement to adults age 18 years
of age and older with a Serious Mental illness (SMI), and their families; children
under age 16 years of age with Serious Emotional Disturbance (SED), and their
families; professional staff members providing services to these populations:
arid the general public.

1.2. The Conlraclor shall provide the services described below in person, or virtually
•  using teleconferencing or distance communication technology due to

restrictions for COVID-19 safety protocols, if applicable. All services delivered
virtually must be approved in advance by the Department.

1,3.. The Contractor shall ensure services are available and provided statewide.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean calendar
days.

Education. Training, and Support Groups

1.5. The Contractor shall provide"one-on-one family support programming, for a
' minimum of one hundred twerity five (125) individuals annually (approximately

sixty-five (65) adults, thirty-five (35) older adults and twenty-five (25) children),
which includes, but is not Itmlled to:

1 5.1. Individualized family support by an individual with lived experience who
can empathize with the challenges and needs of the families and
caregivers seeking support and link ihem with resources.

1,5.2. Age appropriate support and education to families across the life span
so they may learn and develop skills to:

1.5.2.1. Navigate the mental health system;

15.2.2. Manage the stressors that families affected by mental illness
experience;

15.2.3. Share concerns; . *

1.5,2.4. Develop coping skills; ^

.15.2.5. Gain knowledge; ^
'  1.5.2.6. Learn about community resources; and

1.5,2.7. Provide family members opportunities to: ■ -

15.2.7.1. Gain confidence;

15.2.7.2. Learn leadership skills, and

15.2.7.3. Move toward advocacy in order to assume active
'  . roles on state and local boards and cx3mmi|te« that

.. J W
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New Hamp.shire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services

EXHIBIT B

focus on mental health/elated Issues and-participate
in the promotion of the 1 D-Year Mental Health Plan.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide two (2) web-based support groups, Caregivers of
Children Support Group and Family and Friends of Adults Support Group, to
annually serve a minimum of one hundred and twenty (120) families/caregivers
of children and adolescents with severe emotional disorders, and r families and
caregivers of adults and older adults with mental illness, moderated by the
Contractor's staff, to;

1.6.1. Provide participants with the opportunlly to be part of a supportive
community when they are unable to physically attend other support
groups; and

1.6.2. ' Make'peer support, education and resources available to individuals,
families, and providers.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide statewide education and training on family mutual
support programs, which includes, bul ls nol limited to: •

1.7.1. Family to Family and/or Family S Friends education classes by trained
facilitators, for a m inimum of sevenly- five (75) participants annually who
have an adult family member with a mental illness, lo Increase
kpowJedge and skills that vrfll enable participants to:

1.7.1.1. Understand menial illness; ,

1.7.1.2. Manage personal stressors;

1.7.1.3. Engage In and support the treatment and recovery process of
family members; and

1.7.1.4. Advocate for timely and appropriate services.

1.7.2. Training up to four (4) new teachers each year with re-training provided
via quarterly in-service and support opportunities for up to twenty (20)
teacher^

1.8. The Contractor shall provide Side by Side (SbS) curriculum, up to ten (10)
modules, for a minimum one hundred (100) participants who have an older adult
family member, or for peers, and paraprofessionals who work with older adults
with mental illness, to assist participants with;

1.8.1. Understanding mental Illness in combination with other age-related
issues;

-  1.8.2. Accessing supports that assist with being more effective; and

1.8.3. Empowering older adults with mental illness to take a more active role
inlheir care plan.

1.9. The Contractor shall provide three (3) Connection support groups for up to
twelve (12) participants per group annually, for people with a mental illp^ to:

RFP-2022-OBH-01-FAMIL-01 NAM) NmY Hampshire Contractof Iniirtdsf
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services

EXHIBITS

1.9.1. Learn from and support each other;

1.9.2. Share the challenges and successes of coping with mental illness;

1.9.3. Obtain comprehensive information regarding:

1.9.3.1. How to access mental health services and available resources;

1.9.3.2. Improvements to New Hampshire's Mental Health Systein; and

1.9.3.3. How to engage In system advocacy.

1.10. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of one (1) National Alliance on Mental
Illness (NAMI) Peer-lo-Peer Education Program for up to fifteen (15)
participants, which must include, but is not limited to:

1.10.1. Creating a personalized relapse prevention plan;

1.10.2. Learn how to interact with health care providers;

1.10.3. Develop confidence for making decisions and reducing stress;

1.10.4. Stay up-to-date on mental health research;

1.10.5. Onderstand the impact of symptoms on their life; and

.  " 1.10.6. Access practical resources on how to maintain their journey toward
recovery.

1.11. The Contractor shall expand Us peer support services by offering
facilitator/leadership training for individuals in recovery. The Contractor shall
train:

1.11.1. Two (2) new NAMI Peer-to-Peer teachers: and .

1.11.2, Two (2) new NAMI Connection facilitators annually.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide youth and young adult resources and information
on social media, and at minimum one (1) website, which must include but is not

•  limited to:

1.12.1. A youth leadership interactive social networking website facilitated by
young adults with emotional disorders, created for and by youth ages
fourteen (14) through twenty-one (21) who are affected by emotional
disorders and/or mental illness and transitioning to adulthood, which
must include, but is not limited to:

1.12.1.1. Providing a place where youth and young adults are:

1.12.1.1.1, Able to support each other by sharing ideas; and

1.12.1.1.2. Able to discuss concerns and questions about
planning for the future.

1.12.2. Information about opportunities available to youth and young adults to
gel involved to help create a better mental health system. o.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services

EXHIBIT B

1.13. The Contractor shall provide In Our Own Voice {/OOV) presenter training, to a
minimum of eight (8) individuals annually. lOOVshall assist individuals witti lived
experience to gain confidence, and empower them to deliver their personal
recovery story by: ;

1.13.1. Providing the tools to write compelling personal recovery stories;
1.13.2. Assisting participants with enhancing their public speaking skills;

1.13.3. Providing space for indMduals to practice telling their personal stories
within a learning and safe environment;

1.13.4. Engaging new speakers from diverse backgrounds; and
1.13.5. Coordinating speaking engagements for trained speakers with a broad

array of audiences.
1.14. The Contractor shall provide Life Interrupted {U) presenter training, to a

minimum of four (4) new presenters, annually and re-training for a minimum of
five (5) existing preseriters annually. LI family speaker training leaches public
speaking and presentation techniques to assist family members of any age who
have a toved one with a mental HIness and/or serious emotional disorder to
develop presentations that include:

1.14.1. Their family recovery story;

1.14.2. Specific facts about mental health; and
1.14.3. Important anli-sligma messaging.

1.1"5. The Contractor shall provide at least twelve (12) volunteer facilitated support
groups annually by providing;

1.15.1. A venue for group meetings; * ' .
1.16.2. A mechanlism to track participation and evaluation;
1.15.3. Ongoing model-specific quarterly re-lraining/in-service opportunities, for

a minimum of ten (10) facilitators annually in order to:
1.15.3.1. Refresh skilts;
1.15.3.2. Share learned experiences: and

1.15.3.3. Conimunloate up-to-date information on current policy topics
and other relevant information to share with other facitiiators
and . Individuals attending family support programming
statewide.

1.15.4. Training for four (4) new support group leaders annually.
Program Suoport and information Dissemination

1.16. The Corilractor shall provide It's Vour Move Public Policy Leadership Training
for a minimum of twenty (20) participants annually, to assist indivldual^Cfe

I  |Ljt/
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1.16.1. Develop effective communication, messaging skills, and advocacy skills:

1.16.2. Understand state government, the 10-Year Mental Health Plan, the
Children's System of Care, and current legislation relative to mental
health and suidde prevention;

1.16.3. Increase their knowledge of current mental health policies;

1.16.4. Become advocates for mental health issues, and to educate key
stakeholders and Legislators atjoui the importance of mental health
issues across the Itfespan; and

1.16.5. Participate on policy committees and other opportunities in policy
development.

1.17. The Contraclorshallpromote and share information about opportunities to serve
on state and local boards and committees that focus on .mental health related
issues with trained teachers, facilitators, and presenters statewide.

1.18. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of eighteen hundred (1800) hours of
technical assistance annually to education, support and leadership programs
statewide, vi4iich must include but is nollimUed to: •

1.18.1. Communicating with trained leaders, volunteers, teachers, presenters,
and advocates to support them in their leadership roles.

1.18.2. Addressing concerns of trained leaders, tead>ers. and presenters in
order to solve problems.

1.18.3. Providing current menial health updates and resources at quarterly in-
service-meetings with teachers, facilitators, leaders, and presenters.

1.18.4. Making opportunities available for families to participate in statewide
. quality improvement initiatives.

1.19. The Contractor shall serve as-a repository for information and resources
distributing electronic and printed materials regarding mental health, w4iich must
include, but Is not limited to:

1.19.1. Accepting and responding to a minimum of one thousand (1,000) phone,
e-mail, social media messaging, and/or in-person inquiries annually.

1.19.2. Distributing a minimum of fifteen thousand " (15,000) educational
materials annually to individuals, family members, providers, and
organizations. Materials vrili Include:

1.19.2.1. Resources in bolh English and Spanish to Individuals, family
members, health care providers and other professionals
including schools, public safety, health care organizations, and
more;

1.19.2.2. Evidence-based materials for individuals and family support
and education programs: and y-rw
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'  1,19.2.3. Re^urces for suicide prevention and survivors of a suicide
loss. '

1.19.3. Maintaining a public awareness and resource website with content that
indudes, but is not limited lo: *

1.19.3.1. Accurate and current resources for mental health information;

1.19.3.2. Cuirent offerings and schedules for statewide family support
programming; •

1.19.3.3. Family support group information and schedules;

1.19.3.4. Testimony and letters that respond to current legislation. If
applicable;

1.19.3.5. New Hampshire's lO-Year Menial Health Plan;

1.19.3.6. Social networking opportunities for teens and young adults;
.  and

1.19.3.7. A complete listing of Community Mental Health Centers and
Peer Support Agencies, Inclusive of conlacl information.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide information through web-based media, including
Video, Facebook, and Twitler, that must include, but is not limited to:

1.20.1, Publishing links to a minimum of fifteen (15) educational webinars and/or
.videos relevant to;

1.20.1.1. Family education and support;

1.20.1.2. Suicide prevention; •

1.20.1.3. Supports to those bereaved by suicide;

1.20.1.4. New Hampshire's ID-Year Mental Health Plan; and

1.20.1.5. Stigma reduction,

1.20.2. Other topics of interest to families and indiwduals.

Community Education. Stioma Reduction and Public Speaking

1.21. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of fliree <3) educational presentations
for families and/or caregivers affected by mental illness and persons with mental
illness on topics that include, but are not limited to:

1.21.1. Advocacy and current policy updates.

1.21.2. Menial health resources and treatments.

1.21.3. Coping skills and stigma.

'  1,21.4, Working with the Office of Consumer and Family Affairs (OCFA), within
the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau
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of Mental Health. Services. . to develop presentations focused on
persons with mental illness.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide an annual educational conference for individuals,
transilional age youth, families, providers and interested members of the public
that must include:

1.22.1. Mental health topics and issues for all age groups:

1.22.2. Current and emerging evidence-based practices;

1.22.3. A description of the New Hampshire mental health system and 10-Year
Mental Health Plan; and

1.22.4. Key stakeholders and family members on the Conference Planning
Committee during the planning stages.

1.23. The Contractor shall provide educational services and activities for the general
■public, including, but not limited to:

1.23.1. A minimum of twelve (12) anti-stigma messages and responses In
response to public statements that are prejudicial and discriminatory via
use of newspaper, radio,-television and social media sources. The
Contractor shall develop a plan that includes, but is not limited to:
1.23.1.1. Community awareness events.
1.23.1.2. Observance of Mental Illness Awareness Week.

1.23.1.3. Collaborating with agencies, schools, commumty mental
health centers, community providers,, and New Hampshire
Hospital to provide activities and events.

1.23.1.4. Web-based toots in order to promote positive images
associated with mental illness including easily accessible
information or links to information about safe messaging.

1.23.2. A minimum of thirty (30) In Our Own Voice {IQOS/) Presentations of
personal stories, to help reduce tine stigma of mental illness, for a
minimum of eight hundred (800) individuals from targeted audiences
that include, but are not limited to:

1.23.2.1. Mental health and substance use disorder peer support
centers.

1.23.2.2. Mental health and healthcare providers.
1.23.2.3. Colleges.
1.23.2.4. Law enforcement.

1.23.2.5. Department military/civilian committees.

1.23.2.6. Educators/schools.
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1.23.2.7. Other vendors and collaborators, as appropriate.
1.23.3. Amininiumofl9n(10)Lifelnlerrupied'(U)Presentations.foraminimum ^

of one hundred and fifty (150) family members of any age who have a ^
loved one with a mental illness and/or serious emotional disorder gain
confidence through instruction on public speaking and presentation !'
techniques in order to develop^ presentations that include: ;
1.23.3.1. Speaking about their own experiences. .

1.23.3.2. Address mental health stigma.
1.23.3.3. Educate communities about mental illness recovery. •

1.23.3.4. How menial illness impacts family members.
♦

1.23.3.5. Resources available 10 family members. I
1.23.4. A minimum of ten (10) presentations for a minimum of two hundred and

fifty (250) individuals of the general public annually on a variety of topics I
related to promoting awareness abou I treatment and recovery of serious
mental Illness (SMI) and serious emotional disorders (S60), including:

1.23.4.1. Displaying and disseminating information about mental Illness
at conferences, health fairs and other events thai are designed t
for specific, targeted audiences:

1.23.4.2. Ensuring staff members have completed Diversity and Cultural
Competence training as approved by the Department; and

1.23.4.3. Ensuring stigma reduction messaging is a component of all "
public presentations. * ?

Suicitte Freventioh

1.24. The Contractor shall provide information regarding suicide, risk factors,
protective factors and warning signs to individuals, family members, service ^
providers, and the general public to increase their ability to recognize at-risk f
individuals and connect Ihem to qualified health professionals through the
Contractor's NAMINH website, social media, presentations, and the Information
and Resource line. >

1.25. The Contractor shall assemble and distribute a minimum of three hundred (300) r
resource packets for next of kin, vflth approval from the Department, that must ;
include: ' , " ' ^

• * , i

1.25.1. Information and best practices for managing grief from a suicide loss;
1.25.2. Warning signs of suicidal feelings;
1.25.3. Methods for reducing risk of suicide, stigma, and isolation;
1.25.4. Tools to increase help-seeking behavior; and . '
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1.25.5. Resources and connections to Survivors of Suicide Loss support and
education programs.

1.26. The Contractor shall provide suicide prevention and intervention training
■  through; .

1.26.1. Annually, a itiinlmum of four (4) education and awareness events that
* target individuals with SMUSEO and their family members, ini order to
increase awareness of suicide as a public health issue through

• collaboration vwth public and private organizations, coalitions, state
bureaus, indiwduals with lived experience, family organizations, and

, community mental health centers. Events must be designed to transfer
knowledge regarding:

1.26.1.1. Suicide;

1.26.1.2. Risk factors;

1.26.1.3. Protective factors and warning signs;

1.26.1.4. The ability to recognize at-risk individuals;

, 1.26.1.5. Connecting at-risk individuals to qualified health professionals;
and

1.26.1.6. At least one (1) of these events must be delivered during
National Suicide Prevention Month in September.

1.26.2." A minimum of two (2) training opportunities for key service providers,
annually, which must include bulls not limited to:

1.26.2.1. Best Practice protocols that address how key service providers
^  ' should respond to a suicide incident.' » *

1.26.2.2. Integrating provider-specific roles with other providers to
ensure gaps are closed resulting in a coordinated community
response.

1.26.2.3. Promoting early recognition of mental illness, substance abuse
disorder, and warning signs for suicide.

1.26.2.4. Reducing stigmatizing attitudes. '

1.26.2.6. Promoting help seeking.

•  i .26.2.6. Improving relationships between key service providers and the
service delivery system.

1.26.3. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of thirty (30) hours annually of
technical assistance and conference calls to support volunteer suicide
intervention and prevention trainers who train in their local regions to
support the volunteer pool of trainers and ensure they have updated
training information.
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!

1.27. The Contractor shall provide annually a minimum of one (1) Connect
Postvention training, for up to thirty (30) Individuals, which must include, is not.
limited to:

1.27.1.' Best practice protocols for key services providers in order to:
1.27.1.1. Reduce the risk of contagion.

1.27.1.2. Provide information about warning signs for suicide in order to
increase help seeking behavior and sensitivity.

1.27.1.3. Increase the cultural responsiveness of service providers to
. : those bereavied by suicide.

. 1,27,1,4. Provide current science-based information/best practices on:

1.27.1.4.1. Grief:

1:27.1.4.2. Suicide loss;

1.27.1.4.3. Resources; and

1.27.1.4.4. Connection to survivors of suicide loss network.

1.28. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of fifty (50} hours annually responding
to suicide in'ddents by providing consultation and technical assistance to guide
key service providers and community members in the use of best practice
protocols implemented after a suicide death in order to promote healing.

1.29. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of twenty (20) hours of support and
technical assistance to the Survivors of Suicide Loss Networks (SOSL) that
includ;e, but are not limited to';

1.29.1. Support, helpful resources and connection to other families who have
lost a family member to suicide.

1.29.2. Support and lechnioa! assistance to Survivor of Suicide Loss Support
*  - Group facilitators, including, assistance with screening individuals who

are interested in attending groups and maintaining appropriate meeting
locations.

•  1,29.3. Support a minimum of six (6) Survivors of Suicide Loss Support Groups
:  (SOLS) annually. '

1.29.4. Provide a Survivor Newsletter that is distributed electronically statewide,
to a minimum of five thousand (5,000) individuals, in order to educate
service providers, the public, and those affected by suicide regarding:
1.29.4.1. The impact of suicide on families and communities.

'1.29.4.2. Available resources and supports.

1.29,4.3. Reducing the feelings of isolation and shame.
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1.29.5. Coordination of, a minimum of six (6) Survivor Voices presentations
annually, for up to thirty (30) in-person participants, or up to seventy (70)
virtual participants, with the Suicide Loss Survivor SpeaKers' Bureau,

'  that provides technical assistance, statewide, to trained speakers,
including but not limited to:

1.29.5.1. Locating presentation sites.

'1.29.5.2. Distribution of audience materials, including a program
evaluation. •

1.29.6. Survivor Voices speakers re-trainlng. for up to ten (10) speakers
annually, by providing updates on current research trends in suicide
prevention and safe communication, while providing opportunities to
process challenges and stigmas encountered as well as methods to
address those challenges and stigmas.

1.29.7. A minimum of fifty (50) hours, annually, of Individual Survivor Support
that:

■  1,29.7.1. Provides individual support to survivors of suicide loss in order
to connect them with support groups and other survivor
resources. " '

1.29.7.2. Assists survivors in organizing and coordinating mutual
support and activities that promote awareness about mental
illness, suicide prevention, reducing the risk and stigma, as
well as promote healing and help seeking for participants.

1.29.7.3. Provides trained speakers who have survived an attempted
suicide.

1.30. The Contractor shall participate on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention
Council as a member organization. The Contractor will serve as the fiscal agent
for $100,000 of designated state general funds to support implementation of the
goals of the suicide prevention council's strategic plan. The Contractor shall
work with the Suicide Prevention Couficil's leadership committee to;

1.30.1. Prioritize spending recommendations:

1.30.'2. Vote on an annual budget and spending plan;

1.30.3. Bring a proposal forward to the Department for approval; and •
1.30.4, Submit requests to the Department to carry .over funds from one fiscal

year to the next, as necessary.

Administrative Requirements

1.31. The Contractor shall accept the Department's approved consuilalion, technical
assistance, training, and support as identified and specified by the Department
resulting from audit recommendations to fulfill all requiremenls^J, this

I kM
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Agreement.

1.32. The Contractor shall maintain a Board of Directors, which must have a minimum
of nine (9) voting members with experience in the menial health system, and:
1.32.1. The Board of Directors will consist of individuals whom self-identify as

having mental health lived experience; or "

1.32.2, Identify as family members of Individuals with severe mental Illness,
severe and persistent mental illness, early serious mental illness, first
episode psychosis and/or severe emotional disturbance.

1.33. The Contractor shall maintain records of Board of Director membership for
purposes of validation of annual board elections and to support efficient and
regular communications with membership regarding Contractor activities. The
Contractor shall:

1.33.1. Ensure the records are provided to the Department upon request.

1.33.2. Maintain minutes of Board meetings that include, but are not limited to:

1.33.2.1. Topics discussed.

1.33.2.2. Action steps and votes.

1.33.2.3. The monthiy review Of the agency financial status.
1.33.3. Have a documented orientation process and manual for Directors of the

"Board, which must be provided to the Department upon request.

1..33.4. Provide annual training related to the roles and respor\sibi1ities of the
Board of Directors, to include fiduciary responslbililies.

1.34. The Contractor shall maintain an accounting manual specific to the organization
which includes, but is not limited to;

1.34.1. Cash management to include cash receipts, cash disbursements, and
petty cash.

1.34.2. Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable Procedures.
1."34.3. Payroll and fixed assets. ■

1.34.4. Internal Control'Procedures.

1.34.5. Expense reimbursement and Advance Policy.

1.35. Prior to making an offer of employment or for volunteer work, the Contractor
shall, after obtaining signed and notarized authorization from the person or
persons for whom information is being sought*.
1.35.1. Obtain and verify at leas! two (2) references for the person;

-P5
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•  1.35.2. Submit the person's name for review against the bureau of elderly and
r  adult services (SEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161-

F:49: .

1.35.3. Completie a criminal records check to ensure that the person has no
history of;

1.35.3.1. Felony conviction; or

1.35.3.2. Any misdemeanor oonviclion involving; ?

1.35.3.3. Physical or sexual assault;

1.35.3.4. Violence;

.  1.35.3.5. Exploitation; '

1.35.3.6. Child pornography;

1.35.3.7. Threatening or reckless conduct;

1.35.3.6. Theft;.

1.35.3.9. Driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol; or

1.35.3.10.Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior that
could endanger the well-being of a consumer; and

1.36. Unless approved by the Department, the Contractor shall not hire any individual,
Of approve any individual to act as a volunteer, if;

1.36.1. The individual's name is on the BEAS state registry;

1.36.2. The individual has a record of a felony conviction; or

1.36.3. The individual has a record of any misdemeanors specified in Paragraph
1.35.3. , ■>. ,

2. Exhibits Incorporated
2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

,  compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under ttie Health

V  Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance
vwth the attached Exhibit I. Busiiiess Associate Agreenient, which has been
executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage ail confidential data related to this Agreernent in
- accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security

Requirements.
2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, whlr^ are attached

hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

3.. Reporting Requirements
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3.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly financial and statistical reports within thirty
(30) days after the end of each quarter.

3.1.1. Quarterly nnandal reports must include:- >

3.1.1.1 i A Corporate" Balance Sheet.

■  3.1.1.2. An Income Statement using the accrual method Of accounting. •

3.1.1.3. A Budget-to-Actual Revenue and Expense report (Form A)
uiwng the cash method of accounting.

3.1.-1.4, Total, revenue and expenditures, including funds from all
sources.

\

3.1.2. Quarterly statistical reports must include; ■

3.1.2.1. Data statistical reports based on criteria approved by the
Department. ,

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a monthly programming
calendar of scheduled events, trainings and programming for the upcoming _ ,
month by the end of the prior month. .

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a monthly programming report •
that includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. A description for each training session provided for the previous month.

3.3.2. The total number of training sessions provided during the previous f
.  month.

3.3.3. The number- of individuals who participated in each training session.

3.3.4. Individual and (X>llective results of pre and post tests for each .type of
training. ^

3.3.5. The number of contacts made with stakeholders and the general public. , |
in providing mehtal health support and resources and public speaking |

,  engagements. . ' ' S

3.3.6. The number of web-based/electronic postings and resources ■ r . ;
disseminated in the month. -

3.3.7. The number of technical assistance hours spent with education, support,
j  and leadership programs. . , , -

3.3.8. A list of. suicide prevention activities completed and numbers reached,
with the suicide prevention council activities clearly identified.

3.4. The Contractor shall conduct pre- and post-tests for trainings, and report results
based on criteria approved by the Department, to determine effectiveness of j
services In participanl skills, knowledge and confidence. The Contractor shall:

:<•
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3.4.1. Conduct pre- and pbst-tesls for training sessions longer than three (3)
hours.

3.4.2. Conduct posl surveys for training sessions/presentations less than three
(3) hours

3.4.3. Conduct semi-annual follow-up survey with individuals who contact the
Contractor's NAM) Information and ReKiurce program.

4. Performance Measures

4.1.. The Departm.ent monitor performance of the Contractor by reviewing
monthly reports as .described in Subsection 3.3. .

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Departmenl.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, thfe State has the right to modify Service priorities and
experiditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith,

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Servdces'

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within fen (10) days of the Agreement
EffecUv© Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited jEnglish
proficiency; individuals who .are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals
who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who hav^e speech
challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership " "

5.3.1, All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
rriaterials prepared during or resulting from the performance of^ the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Hea))^ and

. . i kM
RFP'202J-OBM-01 'FAMl-O i ^AWt Naw Msmpshlfs Co/ilftaor ^
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Human' Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire ancJ/or such other funding sources as were avaifabfe or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. Ail materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribulion or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced. Including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures, ■ •

5.3.3.2. Resource directories. , ■

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters. .

5.3.3.5. Reports,

5.3.4. The Contractor sbafi not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department,

6. Records

6.1. The Conlraclor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and.other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor. •

6.1.2. All reoirds must be maintained In accordance with accounling
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.2. During the term of (his Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
.  Department, the United .States Department of Health and Human Services, and

any of .their designated representatives shali have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of
the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon payment
of .the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations of the
parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Agreement

BFP.2022OeH-0VfA>41L4)1 NAMI hteiwHsmpShff© ConlfSWOf ^
8.1.0 , pasflisonr
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are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement and/or survive
the termination of the Agreement} shall terminate, provided however, that if,
upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor..

• RFP-2022-DBH-OVFAWIl-Ot NAMl Now HampsWro
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% General funds.

2. Paymenl shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with

:  the approved tine item, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-
2, Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15Ui) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
•Department in order to initiate payment.

A. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
- emailed to dhhs.dbhjnvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager , ^ ^
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord.NH03301 '

5. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequerit to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. • The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Dale.

7. The Contractor must provide (he services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms arid conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, In the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or Stale law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

10: Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price (imitation ■ and adjusting
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be mede by written agreement of both parties, w}i|)jput

RFP-2O22-O0H-OFFAMIL NAMI New.Hawpshife Conlraclof IrtlWs,
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obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. '

11. Audits

11.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to
mAiicca f; mr>rii\@dhhs.nh.Qov if any of the follovwng conditions exist;

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizatlons receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

11.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audil,

11.2. if Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the'
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted In accordance wth the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200; Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audil performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year. -

11.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed, by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made uiidef the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have beerr
disallowed because of such an exception.

RFP.2022-OBH.O(.FAMll . -KAMINowHampshlfo CoftlracierWiSs,
?7H72021
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CERTtFiCATlON REGARDING ORUG-FREE WORKPLACEgEQUIRgMgNTS

The Vendor identified In Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the pmyisions of
Sections 5151'51S0 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 3986 (Pub. L. 1<X)-690. Title V. SubUtle D; 41
U.S.C. 7.01 et seq.V and further agrees lo have fhe Contractor's representative, as idenlifiod m Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Generaf Provisiwis execute the following Certificalion:

ALTeRNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN fNDJVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS ,
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certifrcation Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -51 $0 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Acl of 1988 |Pub. L. lOO-eSO/Tiile V„ Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C, 701 et ssq.). The January 31,
iggg regulatbns were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certifrcation by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sol>
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workp1a.ce.' Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulafion provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Stale
may elect to make one certification to the Departmenl in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscat year covered by (he certificalion. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certificatfon or vtolalion of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Healih and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-650S

The grantee certifies thai it will or will continue to provide a drug^free wortcpiace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees lhal the unlawful manufacture, di^ribulion,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled subslance is prohibited in (he grantee's
wofkplace and specifyittg the actions that will be taken against employees for vioiaiion of such
prohibition;

1.2. Eslablishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2,1. • Tlie dangers of drug abuse in the v/orkplace;

.  1.2.2. Thegranlee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
t.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse vtelations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requiremeni lhal each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of fhe statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the slatemeni required by paragraph (a) ttiat, as a condition of

employment under" the grant, the emplt^ee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

. 1.4.2. Notify the employer in v/riting of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later Iharvfive calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph t.4.2 from an employee or olhenvise receiving aclual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicled employees must provide nolice; including position title, lo every grant

, : officer on whose grant activity the convicled emptoyee was working, unless the Federaj^agency

1.

Exhitjil D - Cwl'O'icai'kjft regarding Drug Free Vcmiof Wliats.
Wotkjtor* Rcgi^ rc'«enls 6/8/20 21
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•  has designated a centra! point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include thfe
identification numbef<s) of each affected grant:

1 ,S. Taking one of the following actions, vvilhin 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4,2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

lermlfiation, crmsisfenl with the requirements of the Rehatjitiialion Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfaclorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabiiilatiori program approved lor such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law ehforcemenl, or other appropriate agency;

1,7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
;  wplemenlalion of paragraphs 1,1,1.2,1.3.1.4,1.5. and 1.6,

2, The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connectioT) with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check Q if there are workplaces on file that ate not identified here.

Vendor Name:

6/3/2021 ; I Umi/JL Nalim, (JCSI^ '
0^ ' NortOn, tiCSW

Title: ExecuCfwc Director

-OJ

Exhibit 0 - CcrtlflcbtionrrsgsfCinjj DruQ Fiftc VcmdOf Iniiisls^
WorkpJaas Reqvilrcnenlj • 6/6/2021
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f^PRTtPICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Putslic Law 1,01-121. Government wide Ggidarwe for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the followirrg Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);♦Tempwary Assistance to Needy Famines under title IV-A
Thild Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title KX
'Medicald Program under Title XIX •
'Community Services BlocK Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV.

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, thai;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wd! be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
cormeclion with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal conlracl, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sulvgrantee or sob-contractor).

2. II any funds other thari Federal approprlaledl funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for •
Influencing or aUemplinglo influence an officer or employee ol any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee ol Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contracl. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form.to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The underatgned shall require dial the language of this certification be included In the sward
document for sub-awards at ail tiers (inctoding sutcbntracls, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shai! certify and disclose accordingly.

This certificatiorj is s material rcpresentalionof feel upon which reliance was placed when this transaclion
was made or entered into. Submission of Ihls certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into Ihls
transaclion imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be sut^ect to a civil penally ofr not less than $i 0,000 and not more than $100,000 (or
each such failure. -

Vendor Name:

6«w8t((i>W6r:

6/8/2021 8 j litUMiiL UC^(^
Date ^ Norton. Licsw

Title'
Executive Director

ExhWt E « CifrfiftcBllon Lobbyirtg Vtfidof

^  OS
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CERTlFICATtON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBtHTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1,3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmenl,
Suspertsion. and Other Responsibility Mailers, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and t.i2 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certificalion; , "

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. "By Signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certificalion set out below. ,

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transacUon. If necessary, the prospeciive participant shall submil an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
deferminalion whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective prirnary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanailon shail disqualify such person from participation in

.  this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon vi4tlch reliance was placed
whert DHHS determined to enter into this (ransaclion. If it Is later determined thai the prospective
primary participant knowringly rendered an erroneous certiftcalion, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Governmeoi. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if al any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when sobmlited or has become erroneous by reason of changed
ctrcumsiarices.

6. The terms "covered Irartsaclion." "debarred," "suspended,••ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participani," "person." 'primary covered transaction." "principal,* 'proposal,* and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in ihis clause, have the meanings set out in the Definilions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR part 76. See the
atlached definilions, v

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knovringly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who,is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospecUve primary participani further agrees by submitting this proposal that il will include the
i^use titled *0611111031100 Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inellglbiliiy and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by OHHS, wiihoiit modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations lor lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certificalion of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction; unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties),

9, Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of fiords
in order to rerider in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Ceilifiealioo Rcga«iing Debaweni, Suspensiofi Conuaeioi Iniiials*
AndOihcfResponsibttityMsUefs 6/8/7021
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information of is participant is not required to exceed thai which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transacUons aulhorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a partic^ant in a •
covered transaction knovwngly eriters into a lower tier coveted transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from pafUclpalion in this Uansaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause Of default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
' 11. The prospective primary participsni certifies to the best of Us knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transectlohs by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {conlract) been convicted of or had

a ctwl judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection wlh oblaining. attempting'to ottoin/or "performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embeulement. theh, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receivirig stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminatly or civilly charged by a governm^ia) entity
(Fedwal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (Ijfb)
of this certification; and

11:4. have not within a ftree-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more pubfic
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participanl is unabte to certify to at^y of the statements in "this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submilling lhis lower tier proposal (contract), the prospecUve lower Ber partidpanl, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its prindpals;
13.1, are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participalion in this transaction by any federal departmeni or agency.
13.2. where the prospecUve lower tier participanl is unatrfe to certify to any of the above, such

prospective partidpant shall attach an explanaUon to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contracl) that it will
indude this clause entitled "bertification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibilily, and
Voluntary- E'xclusfon - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* wthout modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ail solicitations for lower tier covered trensactions.

Contractor Name:

Norton; acsw
*  Tills*

Executive Director

G-m
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CERTIFICATION OP COMPLIANCE WITH REQOIREMENTS PERTAINING TQ '
FPngRAl NQNDISCHIMINATlON. EQUAL TREATMENT Qp PAITH'SASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLE8L0WER PROTECTIONS

The Contraclof idemifled in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represer^taiive as idemified in Sections 1.11 sftd 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certlflcation: *

Contractor will comply, and will require any sobgrantees or subcontractors to compSy. with any applicable
federalnendiscriminationrequirements, whtcli may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1963 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibils
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, eilfter in employrnent practices or fn
the deBvery of services or benefits, on tlie basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equa) Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 <42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) whidi adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Sale Streets Act. Recipients of federal fundirig under this
statute are prohibited from discfiminaling, either in emplopent practices or in the defivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C, Section 2000d. which prohibils recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or acttvUy);

-the Rehabilitation Act of 1373 (29. U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibils recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity; ;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.$.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity (or persons with disabilities in employment. Slate and focal,
governmenl services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and iransporlalion:
- the Education Amendmenfs of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1603.1685-86). which prohibits
discriminafon on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6.106-07), which prohibits discfiminatton on the
tiasis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R, pt, 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and pdlicy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. PL 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Failh-Basad
Organizations); and Whistiebtower protections.41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Aulhorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Erttployee Whislleblowei Protections, which protects employees against
'reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connectio/t with federal grants and coniracis;

The certificate set out below ts a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of ihe certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of granls. or government wide suspension or
debarment.

EichlbilG I ^
ConStactot inlSab^
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State admlnislrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to ihe Office for Civil_ Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within ttie Department of Health and Human Servroes, and
to (he DBpartment of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

1

f  \

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genergl Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 ar«J 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification; ' »

I, By signing and submitting this proposal (conlracl) the Contractor agrees to comply with Ihe provisbns
Indicated above.

Comraclor Name:

6/8/2021

Date Nam^iHi'^nnViW Norton, ticsw
Tille: Executive Oirector

Exhibit O
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CERTIFICATION ReOARDlNG ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - environmenlal Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Iridoof facBity owned or leased or
conlracted for by an enlily and used routinely or regularly for the provis'oni of health, day .care, education,
cv library services to r^ildren under the age of 18, if Ihe senrices are funded by Federal programs either'
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, fadlUies funded solely by
Mledtcare or Medicaid futtda, aitd portions ol facilities used lot inpalienl drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to (»mply vwth the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil rhonetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on Ihe responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1;11 artd 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the fottowing
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts lo com^y
wilh all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 19S4,

Contractor Name:

6/8/2021 [
Date Nam^erfeetW Nbrtoh, ucsw

TiKe. Executive Director

-Bt

E>!hib8 H - CeiUricaSon Regwdtftg Contiadw Initbli,
EnyiroflmentalToBaccoSmoks 6/8/2021
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT T ■

The Contractor IdenRfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards tor Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Inforrriation, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of f^ew Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

*

<1} pefl'nitions,
a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,

Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

' c- 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
CodeofFederalRegulations. «

d. "Destanaled Record Set" shall have the same meaning as She term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501,

e. -Data Aooreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation*" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. .

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning ps the term "health care operations"
in45CFRSection 164,501.

g. "HITEGH Ad" means the Health Information Technology lor Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individuar shall have Ihe same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall indude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFRSection164.501(g). ■

■ j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k.' "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as Ihe term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received-by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

- 3/2014 ExhiWl.1 Co«UeciOf W«al»S==r:
InsuMOce P«rtabiliiy Act

Builnc»» Asjoo'aift Agwemcnl 6/8/2021
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I. •Rftoiiifed bv law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. -Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Infofmation at 45 CPR Part 164, Subpart Q, and amendments thereto.

o  "Unseoired Prntected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorteed individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organizallon that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

P- other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information,

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information f PHI]i except as reasonably necessary to provide the services oultined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, Further, Business Associate, including bul not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the-pfoper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to ,the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operaiions of Covered

-  Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third parly to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentially of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
'  provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the discJoww^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Coveted Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bujf^—

3/20H Emhlbitl Conlfaciw lo'lisls
MeatUi Iwiurartoe PortaBBiiy Act
Business Associate Agicemenl 5/8/2021

^  . PageSols bate

1



DocuSign Envelope ID; EF3235AD-F9DF-4679-81EB-B80B1»74471

DocuSign Envelope ID:C14FB17S-12FE-4130-87B3-C91C0F11E4AE

DocuSign Envelope ID; SF93BEFe-EFe4436l-8968.BO5SCO01208S

DocuSign Eiwelope (0; F9O0l37O-B4tC>4S1A^l3-«B5We5693FO

New Hampshire Departrhont of Health and Human Services

ixhibiti

./Nii

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted alt
remedies.

e-. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health informalion not provided for the Agreemenl including breaches of unsecured
protected heaBh informalion and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situalions. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nalure and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health intormalion or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 ytft^ether the protected health information ws actually acquired or viewed
;  p The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated. '

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determinir^ Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and

,  Security Rule. • '

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
I  access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHi contained herein, including
the duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct ihird party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivihg^l

3*2014 ExWWU Conlfaeltx IriliaU V—
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from sucti
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of (he standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. V\filhin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and "procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. - -

g. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendrnent of PHt or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to lutfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section ■
164.528. ■

|. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity (or a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance wl&> 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity, Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate"
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicablB.

I. " Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is no! feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business 1,^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Btisiness Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4} Obllaattons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limilalion(s) in its
Nc^ice of Privacy Practices provided to ir>dividua!s In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure ot PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate u nder this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 Of 45 CFR Section 164,508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHl that Coveted Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent lhat sucti restricfion may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. ^ •

0) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity niay immedialety terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit t. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

|6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reouiatorv References, All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall, have the same meaning as those term? in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from tjme to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Seojrity Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business"Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to'comply with the change? in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. ^

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership fighls
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be Maoived
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3r20U Exhibiu. Cof^>Bctof
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Seareoallcm If anv term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such irtvalidity shall not affect other terms or
cortditions which can be given effect Without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit i regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, returrr or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {P-37). shall survive Ihe termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto.have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Departmenl of Heallh and Human Setvices

StatOlVi;

Signalure of Authorized Representative

Katja Fox

Name of Authorized Representative
oireccor

Title of Authorized Representative

6/8/2021

NAMI NOW HawpshifC

toi

li
iS

Date

SPjSif^bP Contractor

huAMjJL UCS(^
^naturc ottethofized Represenlativ
Kenneth Morton, Licsw

Name of Authorized Rep/esenlative

Executive Director :
Title Of Authorized Representative

6/8/2021

Date
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it,.

ririyriciftAtlQM REGARDING THE PeOERAl FUNDING ACCOUNTABtLfTY AND TRANSPARENCY i
^  ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE ;?

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual i
Federal grants equal to or greater lhan S28,0C)0 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on ^ ^
data related to executive compensation and assodaled first-tier sutJ-grants of 525,000 or more, lithe v
mitial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over ,S?5 000 the award is sutrject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date ofthe award, • ,
in ̂ ordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the .
Department of Health end Human Serwces (DHHS) must report the loMowing information for any
subaward or conlracl award sul^ecl to the FFATA reporting requiremenis: i
1. fitame of entity
2. Amount of award -
3. Funding agency
I NAICS code lor contracts fCFDA program number for grants i
5. Program source ;
6. Award title descripthte of the purpose of the funding action ' i
7. Location of the entity *,
8. Principle place of performance . !
8. Unique Identifier of the entity (OUNS#) ;
10. Total compensation arid names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those ,
revenues are greater than $25M annually and ' .

10.2. Compensation information is not already available througli reporting to the SEC. |
,  " ft

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which >
the award or award amendment Is made. 'i
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of ;
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Exewitive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Coniraclot's represeAtativa, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the foliowing Certification; w . .k ml.
The below named Contractor agrees to pro^e needed Informauon 35 outlined above to the NH ;
Department of Health and Human Services and to aanf^y with all applicabte provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name; , *
4 ■

^  Nl^^^lthlfdrion. UtJlW
Title: gxecotive Director

ExhiSi) J - CcrtScBtim RceartJIfle ihc FKScfol Funding Conlrwer Inillali.
AccouMsWiii* And Traiaparcncy Art (FFATA) Comj^ianco 6/8/2021
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As ihe Contractor identified in Section i,3 oJ the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

883088411
1. The DUNS number for your entity is; ,

2. In your business or organization's preceding compleled fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, suth^rants, and/Of cooperative agreements; and (2) 525.000,000 ornnore in annual
gross revenwes from, U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sobgranls, andfor
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, slop here

if the answer to <12 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) ol the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U,S.C.7Bin(a), 7^(d)) or seclion 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of.
1986?

NO YES

If the answer Id S3 above is YES. slop here ^

if Ihe answer io #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five rnosf highly compensated officers in your business or
organlzalion-are as follows:

Name:,

Name:.

Name;.

Name:.

Name:.

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount:,

Amount:,

Amount;

cuixmsnorti
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pHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control; compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations v^ere persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

Z  'Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National InstHute of Standards and Technok^y, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidenllal Information" or "Confidenlial Data" means all confidenlial Informalion
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including wrtthout limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health. Information and
Personally Identifiable Information,

Confidential InfofmaHon also includes any and all informalion owned or managed by
the State of NH - aeated, received from or on behalf of the Oepartment of Health and
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed in Ihe course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal taw or regulation! This information includes, t>ut is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information {PFI). Federal Tax Information {FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential informalion,

4. "End User" means any person or entity {e.g., contractor, contractor's-employee,
business •associate, sobconlractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1995 and Ihe
regulations promu^ated Ihereunder. ^

6. "Incident" means an act that,potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
-  ■ which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a

system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
0 system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or softv^re characteristics without the owner's knowledge, Instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

&
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'  DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unaultiorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction,

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segrnent of a network that is
not designated liy the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means inlormation which can be used to distinguish
Of trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:t9, biometric records, etc.,
alor^, or when combined with pther personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Servictes, .

10. "Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA .Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part. 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

vs. L8MMP<ra!e1(V09/1d e»hibitK Corsraclorlnillals
OHHS tefomwlioft

Security RcquiiBtnenls 6/8/2021
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. 12. "Unsecured Protected Health Informalion' means Protected Health Infonnatian that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Informalion
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is * \
developed or-endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by I
the American National Standards Institute. '

I. RESPONSIBILITjES OF OHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR >
%

A. Business Use and Disctosure of Confidential Informalion. •

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information r
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, s

^  including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must no! ^
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constilute a violation :
of the Privacy and Security Rule. :

2. Ttia Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Informalion in response to a i
-04
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request for disdpsure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS SO that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or abject lo the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies Ihe Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pureuanl to Ihe Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such addiiiona!

j  restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4.. The Coniraclor agrees that OHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtain^ under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data lo the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to conftrm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. methods OF SECURE TRANSf^lSSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption, If End User is transmuting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber securily and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
•  or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS

data, .

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confldenlial Data if
email is eneivDted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of

, persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known ds File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to iransmif
Confidential Data. .

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certifi&d ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
•  Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. ,

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
•remotely transmilling via an open wireless network.

9. Remote user Communication, if End User is employing remote communicatior* to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile detfice(s) or laptop from which informaUon will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Prolocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropiiate disclosure of
information. SFTP foWers and sub-folders used for Iransmilting Oonfkienlial Data will
be coded for 24-hour aulo-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data vwit be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITI.ON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS ' •

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract, After such time, the Conlractor vvill have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form if may exist, unless, olhervrise required, by law or permitted
under this Conlracl. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention • . •

1. The Contractor agrees it wiil not store, transfer or process dale collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in (he implementation of
cloud computing, cloud sen/ice or cloud storage capabililies. and includes backup

. data and Disaster Recovery locations,

2. The Conlractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to delect poteniial security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provldad systems.

3. The Contcaclor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confiderilial information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and tdeniified in section IV. A.2 . ' .

5. The Conlfacto.r agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with ail applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. Ail servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anli-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-malware utilities; The environment, as a

vs. LsiT ujxkuo lQr09/tS ExhibiiK Conifaeioflnltiitt^ ■ ■ ■
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vvhote, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection!. •

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Us complete cooperation with the Stale's , •
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrasiruclure. .

8. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confideniial informatlon on Its systems (or its
sub-oontractor-systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster ^
recoveiy operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program ♦ .
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example.
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines .
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. V
Cteparlmenl of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and vwll provide wltten certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to ;
demonstrate dala has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applfcable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will t»e jointly
evaluated by the Siale and Contractor prior to destruction,

•

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this •
Contract, Cofrtractor agrees to destroy ali hard copies of Confidential Data-ysing a
secure method such a^s shredding. - I

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this .
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also knovm as secure dala wiping. t

IV, PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY ' !

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or flies, as follows:

1. The Contractor wilt maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, snd/or stored in the delivery

■  of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain .policies and procedures to protect Department •
confidential informalion throughout the information iifecycle, where applicable, (from-
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems thai collect, transmit, or store Department confidential tntormalion
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place lo
detect potential security'events that can Impact State of NH systems end/or
Department confidenlial iriformation forrcontractof provided systems.

'  5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareriess and education for Us End
Users in support of prolecling Department confidential Information.

6. if the Contractor virill be sub-contracting any core (unctions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes lhat defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements lhat at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department syslern. access, and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be

• completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant lo 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining cornpliance \Mlh the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the DejDartmeni at its request to complete e System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Conlraclor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may

.1? occur over the life of the Conlraclor engagement. The survey wdll be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion vwlh agreemenl by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Slates unless
prior express written consent is-obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, in the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any'damage or loss resulllng from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call, center searices necessary due' to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, cpmply with ail applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Coniidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy, and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 150 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law:

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain apprc^riate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data 'and Id
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
e'stabtished by the State of New Hampshire, Department of tnformation Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procuremerit at htlps'7/www.nh.gov/doit/vendof/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement informatioh relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
Stale s Security Officer of any security breach immedialeiy^ at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This indudes a confidential information breach, computer
security inddent, or suspected breach svhich affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire network,

>: 15. Contractor must, restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract,

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV" A. above,
-  implemented to protect Confidential information that is furnished by DHHS

under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. »

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidanilal information lo the extent permitted by law.

f. Conlidenlial Information received under this Conlracl and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons^
during duty hours as welt as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV atrave.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based

,  - assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep (heir credential information secure.
This applies lo credentials used lo access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third parly application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
resen/es the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this '
Conlracl, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulaltons until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract,

V, LOSS REPORTING

The Conlraclor must notify the Stale's . Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Sacufity Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. ^

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contraclor's procedures musl also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents; •

2. Delermine if personally identifiable information is involved In I ncidenils;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; -

4. Identify and convene a core response group lo determine the risk level of Incidents
and delermine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

■  ■ . '.[i
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5, Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. kJe.ntify appr^Jriate
Breach nolification methods, liming, source, and contents from among dlffer^t
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

■  Irtcidenls and/or Breaches that implicale PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

t

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficef@dht5s.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInfOfmalionSecurityO{fice@dhhs,nh.gov r
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